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Aspris Holdeo Limited
Strategic Report for the period to 31 Angust 2022

The Directors present their strategic report of the period from 28 July 2021 to 31 August 2022,

Throughout the document, references to the “Company’ refer to Aspris Holdeo Limited. References to the “Group”
refar to Aspris Holdco Limited and [ts subsidiaries, Al amounts aie presented in GBP £m, unless otherwise stated.

Principal activity
The principal activity of the company is to act as an investinert holding company.

The Group is a leading provider of specialist educetion and care services to young people in the UK, Educating and
caring for a wide spectrum of specialist education and mental healthcare needs, fnoluding avtism, leaming difficulties,
social, emotional and mental herlth conditions (SEMH). In addition, the Group provides specialist education and
mental health services to young people and adults respectively across the Middle East, The Group operales via two
primary divisions:

* The UK divisions provide education and residential care and assessment for children with specialist
emotional and behurvioural difficulties or autistic spectrum disorders,

¢ The Middle East divisions provide education to young people in the UAE, and mental healthcare and
wellbeing selvices to adults and young people in UAE and KSA.

Business Review
Development of the business

The Company was incorporated on the 28 July 2021, and on the 31 Auvgust 2021 acquired 100% of the shareholding
of Aspris Children's Setvices Limited (“ACSL”) (previousiy named Priory Education Services Limited) through the
100% owned subsidiary Aspris Bideo Limited, These financial statements represent the results of the activities of the
Company since incorporation, the activities of the Aspris group since the date of acquisition and the subsequent
acquisitions and disposals described below. Prier to the acquisition of ACSL the Group did not have any trading or
operations and so the metrics quoted below as part of the ‘Performance of the Business' section are for the twelve
months ending 31st August 2022,

On 28 January 2022 the wholly owned ACSL purchased 100% of the shareholding in SC Topco Limited, From this
date the consolidated results and activities of SC Topco Limited {*Sandeastle Care’) are represented in these financial
statements,

On 31 March 2022 ACSL acquired 100% of the shareholding in Hollyblue Healthcare (Arden) limited, latterly
renatned Aspris {Arden) Limiled. From this date the results and activities of this acquired entity are represented in
these financial statements, Please sce note 17 to the financial statoments for additional information on the above
business combinations completed during the period.

In addition to the Group's primary focus of providing high quality education and care to ali those within its services,
the Group has also been focused on the successful completion of the folfowing key developments:

+ Separation liom the Priory Group of companies, Whilst the operations of ACSL were largely autonomous
from those of the wider Priory Group, Aspris was the vecipient of central support services provided to it by
the Priory Group. These services continued undet a transitional services arrangement agreed at the time of
the Group’s acquisition of ACSL. This transitional stage included the implementation of Aspris® own
standalone sysiems and support infrastructure, the process of which was campleted by 1% January 2023, with
all services recefved under this transiticnal arrangement ceased Lo be provided from that date.



Aspris Holdeo Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Dusiness Review (eontinued

Development of the husiness {eoniinued)

¢ Acquisition and integration of Sandcastle Care into the Aspris Group. Sandcastle Care provides residential

care places for over 100 young people, primarily in the North West of the UK. These serviees are siimilar in

nature lo those already provided by the Group. The integration and incotporation of this business into the
Group has been a focus for members of the management team during the peried.

+  Review of Grotip strategy and long-term plan, Foltowing the successfil separation from Priory Group, the

Group has underiaken a broad review of the key sirategic direction and objectives of the business. The
completion of this process provides the overarching framework within which the business is managed and
directed by Ihe Board and senior management,

«  Continued expansion of our Middle East opevations. Since esiablishing a presence in the UAE in 2017,
ACSL has steadily grown the provision of services in the region to cater for the education and care needs of

both young people and adults, including geographic expansion into KSA., Whilst the Middle East division
remains small relative to the primary UK operations {please refer (o note 4 Lo the financial staiements for
the split of revenue for the period ending 31 August Z022), the region represents a central part of the
Group's development sirategy.

Performance of the Business

The key financial and non-financial performance indicators during the period were as follows:

Key I{PXs 2022
Turnover £179.2m
Operating profil before Tmpatrtaent losses and Exceptional costs £23.1m
Quality 83.2%
Capacity 1,910
Occupancy 1,660
Occupancy % 86.9%
Amnual Growth in Middle Bast patient appoiniments 50.1%
Noles:

1

2.
3,

Operaling profil measure of £23.1im is equal 10 fhe Grovp's Operating loss £4_7m stated before Exceplional costs of £7.8m, Impairment
tosses of £19.7m and Other losses ol £0.7m

Quality, Capacity and Qocupancy metrics refnie to the UK business only, unless siaied

Capagity an Ceeuponcy quoted are avemges for e period on 8 non-proforme baosis, with dual placements included as o single unit of
capitity and occupaney




Aspris Holdco Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Busiuess Review (continued,
Quality of our services

A primary indicator of the Group’s performance is the level of Guality of the services we provide to those in our
care,

Regulatory requirements differ across the Group, though the vast majority of omv UK services ave regulated by the
Office for Standards in Education, Childven’s Services and Skills (*Ofsted”), and in Scotland and Wales by their
local equivalent. All sehools and children’s homes must be licensed, and the reievant regulators award quality
ratings to each service, In Abu Dhabi, the school operated by the Group is regulated by the Abu Dhabi Department
of Education and Knowledge ("ADEK’*) but is also subject to British School Overseas inspeclions. In addition, a
limlted number of our services are aiso regulated the Care Quality Commission (*CQC”) in Bngland, and, in
Scotland, Wales, Northern Itefand, and the Middle East, by the local cquivalent.

Within the UK the Group achisved an average % of facilities rated as Good or above by their respective tegulators
of 83.2%. This is above the national benchimark level published by Ofsted but is below where the business’
objectives ave in this area. The provision of the best quality service is & key priority and the business is focused on
confinugus improvement in this area, supported by increased investiment in our support funciions that directly or
indivectly support the quelity of our services.

Within the Middle East, the Group’s specialist edueation operations jn Abu Dhabi (the first dedicated autism school
in Abu Dhabi for Emirati students in parinership with ADEK) underwent the first major inspection of a dedicated
autism school in the region. The outcome of this inspection was foimally announced on 1% November 2022, with the
school achieving an Quistanding rating across all areas, This further demonstrates the Group’s established delivery
of exceptional level specialist education services beyond the Group’s primary UK market.

Results for the period

The Group delivered high quality services to meel the needs of a wide spectrutn of young peopie, families, Local
Axthorities and communities across the UK and Middlc East. With an average mimber of 1,660 young people using
our services in the UK. during the period and 180 young people in the Middle East, In addition, the volume ofoulpatieat
appointments in our Middle East Wellbeing centres increased by 51,1% vs the equivalent prior period, diiven partly
by the opening of two new centres in Abu Dhabi and Saudi Arabia.

The results for the year ave set out in the consolidated Incoine Statement on page 26 and the financial position of the
Group as at 31 August 2022 is set out in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position on page 28. Group revenue
for (he year was £179.2m and Qperating prafit before exceptional costs, impairment loss and ather losses was £23.1tn,
which represents an operating margin of 12.9% of revenue. Key factors of the operating profitability of the business
include the number of service users in our facilities, the availabilily and cost of staffing and the cost of associated non-
wage costs requited to support the young people and our operatians more generally.

The Group’s net loss for the period was £27.1m, which vyas alter charging £19.7m irnpaicment to goodwill relating to
the Sandcastle division, and after £7.8m of exceptional costs, these primaily relfate to the costs incurred in relation to
the corporate transactions undertaker and outlined sbove and in note 17, Further details of these exceptional charges
and impalrment are given in notes 10 and 135 to the finadcial statements.

The Group’s financial position and underlying operating cash generation is positive, with net assets of £92.0m at the
close of the perfod and net cash flow fiom aperating activities during the pertod of £34.2m,



Aspris Holdco Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Business Review (continued)

Results for the period (contimued)

The largest componenl of our cost base is the wages and related ancosts of our staff, which represents 67% of operating
cosis,

Staff are qur primary resource and the Group prioritises the wellbeing, retention and recruilment of our workforce,
This inciudes increased investment in staff wages, bul algo in a range of measures designed lo increase statf weilbelng
and engagement.

Staff shortages have been a feature of the reporling period, with & small number of our available resldential places
being offfine due (o these coustraints, Despite these faclors the fingnelal peiformance of the Group was inling with the
oripinal business plan supporting the acquisition of ACSL,

Future developments and steatery

Management consider the Group to be in a good position to expand the provision of its services in both the UK. and
Middle East, Building on its existing high quality provision aad stronig reputation within each region to provide
essential services Lo a greater tumber of people in the communities thal il serves.

The Group strategy prioritises the improvement of guality and utilisatlon across all our existing facilities, In parallel
with continulng to expand the specialist edncation aspects of the business, With the planned opening of new education
capacity at existing and nesvly identified sites, being complemented by the targeled and selectlve acquisition of
existing specialist education providers.

Following the cloge of the reporting period, and consistent with this stralegy, the Group completed the acquisition of
a specialist education pravider in the UK, BHIS Holdings Limiled, The acquired business, and its wholly owned
subsidiaries, provide specialist education for up 1o approximately 100 primary and secondary school aged young
people in the East of Bngland. To support this acquisition, and the Group®s broader growth cbjectives, the Group
entered Into an extension of its available external debi facilities with lts existing lendets, This new growth facliity was
agreed and effective from 8 February 2023.

In eddition, after the close of the reporting petiad the Group completed a reorganisation of its UK operations, This
reorganisation is aimed at improving and strengihening the management structure to increase focus on delivering on
the Group's objectives for all aspects of our services, including optimising staffing, and thereby improving utilisation
across our portiolio, by increasing transparency and management communication through all levels of the business,

In the Middle East, the Group Is growing vla the maturing of its recently opened Wellbeing Centres and via wider
oppotfunities to expand the education offering across regfon. In KSA the Group opened a Wellbeing Cenire in
Riyadh through its joint venture with a local pariner that was entered into in 2020. The Group continues (o view
current and future local partnerships in the region as a key avenue for growth.




Aspris Holdco Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Princlpal Risks and Uneertainties

The Group can be impacted by a range of external factors, The principal factors are the availability and retention of
the appropriate number of trained and quafified staff, the macro-economlc environment resylting in increaged inflation
and increased interest rates, changes in the UK government’s policy towards the [unding of specialist education and
care, changes In the regulatory regime, compelitive threats from other providers and the loss of key individuals, The
following are the most significant risks and uncertainties fac ng the Group,

Failure to comply with regalation and imereased regulatory costs

All of the Group’s services ave subject fo a high level of regulation by various regulatory bodies, Laws and
regulations are evalving wlithin the sector {and may be introduced in the futwre) thet could impose increased costs on
the Group’s operations. The Group is unable to predict the content of new tegislation and/or regulations and their
effect on its business,

inspections by regulators ave carried out on both an announced and unannounced basis, dependent on the specific
regulatory provisions velating to different care or educetion services, The failwre 1o comply with relevant regulations,
that therefore {eads to the determination of regulatory non-compliance, or the failure of the Group lo cure any defect
noted in an inspection report could result in the vevoealion or imposltion of conditions on the registration of any
service or a decreage in or cessation of, services provided by the Group at one or more of its facilities.

To mitigate these risks, the quality of care is mouitored by an experlenced team and through the establishment of
robust policies and procedures. The team are independent of the operating divislons and report directly to the Board.
Homes are tegularly audited by the team to ensure compliance with care standards and action plans are drawn up in
appropriate cases. Risks also mitigated by investing in the legal and compliance team, aid in rectuitment and
tralning. Where changes in legislation cen be predicted, the Group madels the impact the changes will have in
advance of the legislation being implemented,

Emplayees

The Group’s performance depends on its operational staff rt our schools and residential homes. The managers of our
facilities, and their respective site teains, are essential for the provision of our services, The loss of key individuals
and the inability lo recruit people with the right experience and skills from the focal community eould adveisely
impact the Group’s results.

The relevant [abour markets for certein of our services have become more challenging over the reporting period and
may continue to be challenging, or become more o, in the future, This may lead to an incresse in the number of
staff vacancies across the Group and thevefore restrict the proportion of our cepacity that can be fully operationai
and/or slow future growth prospecis, Whilst the challenges have been less evident in the Education portion of the
business, as compared ta the residential aspects of our services, it has nevertheless been & factor across the Group.,

To mitigate these issues he Group has implemerted a wide vange of measures to enhance both our recruitment and
relention of staff. These initialives are led by dedicated senior management from our Human Resources depariment,
along with our Learning and Development function, and are targeted at improving overall employee welfave and to
ensure our staff offering, both financial and non-financial, is competitive within the markets in which we operate.

Specifically, regarding staff pay, the Directors take steps to ensure competitive salary levels across the Group and
have sought to increase scross salaries across the Group during the period to aid retentlon and secruitment, with
specific consideration to the cost-of-living increases or all staff caused by the macro-econoaiic environment.

However, there is a risk that these salary levels arc not sufficient to improve the Group®s staff metics and therefore
further constraints on our services due to staff sholtages may be possible.
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 {continued)
Principal Rigks and Uncestainties {continued)

Nou-Wagt sugplies and cost jufiation

In addition to workforce remuneration, the Group also incurs costs on a range of supplies, including food, education
supplies, energy/utilitics and renlal expenses. The eurrent macro-economic backdrop places increasing pressure an
the avallability and cost of cettain key supplies.

With energy, and other bulk producl supply, chailenges across Burope driving higher inflalion levels than ln
previous yeaus there is increased price pressure on the Group’s cost base. Thare is a risk that these costs increase
further and, whilst they are a minority of the Group’s cost base, increases could stili be material,

1n addition, there is a risk thal certain suppHes will take longer io source and therefore substitute producls may need
to be found, there is a risk this could cause disruplion to our services and that alternative supplies may be more
costly than those supplies whicl they replace.

In addition, certain supplies, such as food, are sourced from a low number of major national suppliers and therefore
there may be g risk that disruption of service at one supplier, o price changes by those suppliers, could have an impact
on the Greup,

To mitigate these areas the Group has a dedicated procurement function focused on optimising our sources, costs af
and security of supply, The Group engages o 4 regular basis with all our key suppliers to ensure effeclive management
of these risks, In addition, the Group seeks to agree pricing and secwrity of supply on a forward basis where possible
and appropriale, for example on our energy supplies, to increase visibilily over cost end reduce supply side visks.
Management of these risks include maintaining relallonships with secondary somce supplies to ensure options are
available to mitigate disraptions In supply from a particular provider,

Loss of revenne from contracts with UIC loeal autherities

A substantiel proportion of the Group’s UK revenue derives from publicly funded Lecal Authorities. The Group
cxpects to continue {o rely on the ability and willingness of these bodies lo pay for the Group’s services, Whilst
there is an obligation for Local Authorities to fund the provision of such services to young people there Is 5 sisk that
either budget constraints or other financial pressures could cause such publicly funded bodies to allocate less money
to the types of service that the Group provides, or that political change or policy changes meen that fewer services
are contracted from independent seclor providers,

In addition, there is a risk that these Local Authorities are not able to meet the increased costs of us viably providing
services at certain facilities, due lo the above-mentioned cost pressures.

To mitigate these risks the Group regularly assesses services provided to cnsure they vepresent value for money and
where necessary repositions services to align with demand. Through the Group’s dedicated Bidding and
Commissioning (eam, and other tnentbers of our senior management team, the Group engages in regular
communication with our Looal Authorities custommers to ensure these is clear and open dialogue with our key
custoners.




Aspris Holdoo Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Lrincipal Risks and Uncertainties (eantinued

IT security and Data Protection

The Group’s IT infrastructure is an integral part of its operaling capability, This infrastructure provides conneclivity,
hardware and software applications to all of our facilities and central functions. Furthermore, the Gioup holds large
volumes of sensitive data, o portion of which resides within our IT environment,

Tliere is & risk that the systems or applications fail or are subject to a security breach that tfemporarily prevents their
use and therefore impacts our services, In addition, such an event may compromisc sensitive data held within the
Group telating 1o its customers, which could expose the Group to further liability due to such a breach,

The Group invests significantly in meeting these potential risks. With a dedicated 1T depariment reasonable for the IT
environment and security, complimented by external expect advice and services procured to enhance key aspects of
Data Protection and Cyber security,

Iupact from tlie risks related to the Covid-19 pandemic

The global outbreak of COVID-19 in 2020 represented a significant source of uncertainty within the wider
macracconomic environment, including the sectors in which the Group operates. Distuplion was experiernced by most
sectors, and the Group’s services were pot immune to {hese impacts,

Given the nature of our services the Group contimued to aperate iis {ull service provision, with all schools and homes
remaining open in the UK, and our Middie East Wellbeing centres moving successfully to &n onfine appoiatment
baged model, The teams across the Group performed wilh outstanding professionalism to ensure we continued to
deliver essential education and care to all those that rely on our setvices.

‘Whils! there were notable staff absences due to self-lsolaticn, and the resulting operational challenges, the long term
financial impacl on the Group was not significant, and with the exception of the longer term constrainis that have
impacted the peneral labour market referenced above, the Group is currently not impacted by the pandemic.

The Divectors believe any further similar outbreak would be met with a similar successful response, but there is a risk
that a new Covid varient, or other pandemic, may have n greater lmpact on the Group’s ability to provide iis services,

To mitigate this the Group has clear and robust infection control policies, including contingency planning for staffing
in the event of a further outbreak.

10



Aspris Holdeo Limited

Strategic Report for the period fo 31 August 2022 (continued)
Erineipal Risks and Uneertainties {continued)

Financial rislk management

The Group is exposed to financial risks In the form of credit, interest and liquidity visks which atise in the normal
course of business. The primary financial risks that the Group is expased to are tioted belosw, for funther detail on these
financial risks please see note 27.

Crodit risk

Finanoial instruments which potentlally expose the Group to ereditrisk consist primarily of cash and trade reeeivables.
Cash is only deposited with meajor finencial institutions that satisfy cerlain credit critetia.

Credit risk is not consideted 1o be significant given that over 30% of revenue is dertved from publicly funded enfities,
and payment js taken In advance or at time of treatment for privalely funded healtheare services at our Wellbeing
centres.

Interest rate risk

The Group is financed by a combination of Scnior and Revelving external credit faciiities. All the external debt of' the
Group containg a variable element which is linked 1o the Sterling Overnight Index Average, published by the Bank of
England. Senior loars are vepayable on 31 August 2028, and Revolving facilities are repayable on 31 Aupust 20256,

The Group regularly reviews the options available to it for the hedging of intevest rate risk, but currently does not have
a hedged compenent to the interest burden on its external debt, In light of prevailing market conditions, and the high
cost of hedging instruments, the Directors belicve the Group has sufficient capacity to addvess the risk of interest rale
rises.

Liguldity rvisk

The Group prepares annual and monthly cash flow forecasts reflecting known commitments and anticipated projects.
‘The Group has sufficient avallable facllities and cash flows from profits to fund current commilments. The Group has
access 10 s Revolving Credit Facility that is availabie to support the Group’s operational liguidity requirements at the
signing of the financial statements the majority of this Revolving Credit Facility was undrawn,
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Section 172(1) statcment

The following Sectlon 172 statemend, which is requized by the Cormpanies Act 2006, describes how the Directols
heve had regard to the inatters set out in 5172 (la to 1£) including key decisions and matters that &te of sirategic
importance to the Group. The Board of Directors, in line with their duties under 8172 of the Companies Act 2006,
act in & way they consider, in good faith would be most likely to promote the success of the Group for the benefit of
its members as a whole, and in doing so have regard to e range of matters when making decisions for the long ternt.

‘We alm te pursue an open and transparent dislogue vith our key stakeholders in arder to develop a clear
understanding of their needs, asscss their perspectives and monitor their impact oo our strategic objectives. As part
of the Board’s decision-making process, the Directors consider the pofential impact of decisions on relevant
stakeholders whilst also having regacd to & nimber of broader factars, including the impact of the Group's
operations en the community and environment, responsible business pactices end the likely consequences of
decisions in the long term.

Koy stalteholfers

Our key stakeholders are our service users (and their families), our workforce, our repulators and our investors and
lenders. Qur commissioners, suppliers, and the communities we cperate within are also important stakeholder groups.
All key Board decisions take into account the impact on the relevant stakcholder groups, as foilows:

Service users and fheir families

The Group provides specialist education, care and menta! health services to a wide range of young people in the UK,
and {o young people and adulls in the Middle East. Those to whom services are provided, and their families, are
fundamental to every aspect of the Group’s aperations and obicetives. The Directors monitor the quality of service
provision to ensure the highest lovels of care are provided by a highly skiiled and well cquipped workioree. In addition,
the Directors monitor the condition and appropriateness of the environment across the Group’s facilities to ensure the
physical environment in which services are provided are appropriately configured and maintzined to the high standards
required for leading education and care provision. Feedback is received directly through our opevational teams, who
interact directly with service users and their families, and through multiple channels of communication to senior
management to ensure issues can be raised and escalated outside of any specific care team or facility. The directors
are committed ta open communication and transparency regarding all aspects of our service delivery, and ensuring
the Group's operations deliver service provision to meet the specific needs of each individual service user,

Waorkforce

Qur worldorce is key to providing safe and effective cave to those wham we suppart. The Group employs a wide array
of specialist education and care professionals and engagement with thoge employees is paramount. The Directots
inenitor the results of staff surveys, both regular and ad hoc, together with the Group’s system of employee forums
which occur at local, regional and national level, meaning the Board is able to discuss human resourcing matters with
the interests of its workforce at heart. An example cf actions taken in response (o the feedback penerated through these
channels is the articulation of tallored career pathways available to a!l Group employees. Annoal satary reviews are
undertaken with reference to the importance of colleague retention, changes in the Nativnal Living Wage, and
comimercial factors. The Directors are committed to communicating the results of any wage reviews in a transparent
manner. Farther information in respect of employees is sct out on the Direclors’ report.

Investors

Our shareholders register consists of a majority shareholders, Standbyco 35 B.V. who arewholly owned by Waterland
Private Equity Investments B.V., and a number of minovity shareholders which includes our Jargest single iandlord
{Medical Properiies Trust) and various members of the Group’s management team. The Board engages regularly with
its major shareholdets in order to, inter alia, develop long-term and short-term business stratogy, decide upon resource
allocation and consider key business risks, This includes regular reporting to both Waterland Private Equity and
Medical Properties Trust to ensure clear alignment and transparency over Group performance and direction.
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Stratepic Report for the period fo 31 August 2022 (continued)
Section {72(1} statement {corntintred)

Regulators

We are subject to 2 high degree of regulation, particularly in relation lo the registeation and ongoing inspection of owr
services. The “business review™ seclion above outline the key regulatory bodies, Resulis of inspections and more
general reports made by the regulators are discussed by Lhe Boatd where appropriate, and ongoing dialogus is
mainteined in order to respond with sgility to emerging aveas of focus, Some of our regulators also have responsibility
for monitoring the ongolng financial viability of our business — senior management meet with the regulators
periodically to engage in |his process. StafT bonuses schemes at gll levels of the organisation ave al least partly linked
(o the outcomes of internal and external quality metrics,

Customers

The majotity of our revenue is generated ftom the provision of seyvices to Local Authorities and other public bodies,
with & minority of revenues generated from private funding. Tn all cases is important that we evolve our service
provision to salisfy local demaud (the needs of which van change over time), meet changing education and cave criteiia
and provide such services at {he right time and place a1 an appropriate cost, Communicalion with customers is ongoing
bath locally and rationally, and the Board will consider the requirements of customers when allocaling resources far
new or amended service offerings, and apreeing a general approach to funding,

Supplters

We nim to treat our suppliers fairly and work in parinership with them as they provide essential goods snd seryices lo
the Group. THs cur policy Lo adhere (o agreed credit terms. We maintain strong supplier relutionships acress our supply
chains, led by the Group’s dedicated procurement function, Our key suppliers also includes our contracted wavkforee,
agency warkers and related staffing agencies in the teaching and care prafessions, who play an essential role in
delivering quality services. For all supplies we engage in transpareat and robust tendering and onboarding processes
to deliver fair and sustainable cutcomes for suppliers and for the Group.

Communities

The Group operates nationally and many of our facilities are embedded within the wider community, It is therefore
important that the impaet of our operations on the communities e operate in sre {aken into consideralion, We are
also cognisant of the need to consider the overafl environment when contracting with suppliers, or considering any
significant development projects, for example.

Principal decisions

The Group defines principal decisions as those that are material, or of strategic importance to the Group, and also
those that have a sigrificant impact on any of our key stakeholder groups. By way of example, a selection of principal
dectsions taken by the Board during the year is set out below, highlighting the primary stakefiolder groups affected
and some of the considerations taken into account in reaching those principal declsions.

Approval of the 2022/23 hudget

The Board approved, prior to the start of the new financial and academic year, the final budget for the twelve months
ending 31st Angust 2023, The budget includes forecasts for each existing facility as well as central functions in order
lo arrive at an aggregated business plan. The key stakeholder groups affecled ave our investors and our workiorce,
Some of the key considerations taken inic accounl included the balance of delivering ever greater quality of sexvices,
improved staff relention and growth of our services to service a greater number of people,

13
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Section 172(1) statemestt (continued)

Facllity vefurbishments, expansions and service changes

As part of the 2022/23 budpet, and looking ahead Into the medium term, the Board approved a mumber of sipnificant
capital expendituve piojects in order to refurbish andfor expand existing facilitics, reteo! Iocations 1o better reflect
demand for services and consider selective additional property acquisitions fo expand certain service lines. The key
stakeholder groups affected are our investors, our commissioners and cutrent and fture service users, Somes of the
key considerations taken into account included the likely returin on investment of such projects, the ability of a project
to meet the requivements of conumissioners in providing & particular service, and our ability to safely and effectively
operate the service.

Anti-corruption and anti-bribery i atters

The Group hes an established and Robust Anti-Bribery and Corruption processes and controls In place, These are
supported by an internal audit function that has the mandate to peyform announced and umannounced inspections and
investigation into any lransactions accurring al a local, regional or group level.

Approved by the Board and signed on ils behalf by:

Trevor M Torringtol
Director Divector

The Forge,

43 Church Street West,
Woking.

Q21 6HT

21 March 2023
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the period ended 31 August 2022

The Directors present their report and the consolidaled financial statements for the period fiom 28 July 2021 10 31
August 2022,

Incovporation

The Company was incorporated in England and Wales and commenced trading cn 28 Tuly 2021,

The consolidated financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with Intevnational financizl Reposting
Standaids (“IFRS") and the IFRS Inlerprelalions Commiltee {“IFRS 1C") interpretations as adopled by the UK.

This repart should be read in conjunction with the stralegic report from page 4. The Group has chosen in accordance
with Seclion 414C (2) of thie Companies Act 2006 1o set out in the strateglc repor the following which the Direclors
believe to be of siralegic imporlance:

*  Dusiness review;

»  Future development and sirategy;

s Principal risk and uncerlainties; and
+  Finencial risk management,

Directors of the Group

The Direclors, who held office durlng the perind, were as follows:
Oliver J Bevan (appointed 28 Tuly 2021)

Ryan Hellworth (appointed 28 July 2021)

Ryan D Jervis (Appointed 31 August 2021)

Trevor M Tormringlon (Appointed 31 August 2021)

Dividends

The Board has not recommended a dividend for the reporting period and has ne current plan to do so.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 {continued)

Statement of DHyectors® Responsibilities

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilitiss for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable lew and reguiations,

Company law requires the Direclors to prepare financtal statements for each financiat year. Under that law the
Directors have elected to prepare the financial statements In aceordance with UK adopted Internatioral Financial
Repotting Standards (IFRSs), Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial stalements unless they
are satisfled that they give a true and fair view of the state of affaivs of the company and of the profit or loss of the
company for thal period. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required fo:

»  select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

»  make judgements and accounting cstimates that are reasonabie and predent;

» state whether applicable UK adopted International I'inancial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial slatements; and

s prepare the financial siatements on the geing concern basis unless it is inappropriete to presume that the
company will contlnue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient lo show and explain the
Group’s and the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable gccuracy st any time the financial positien of
the Gioup and the company and enable them lo ensure that the financial staternents comply with the Companies Aot
20086, They ave also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other itregularities.

Corparate governanee
The Group has robust Governance and oversight of all aspecis of the business:

+  The Board meet at least six times per annum and are responsibic for the overall management and direction
of nll aspects of the Group.

»  TheExecutive Commiltee, which is Chaired by the Chief Executive Officer and includes senior management
from across ell aspeets of the business, mests monthly and ace the primary executive team for the execution
and governance of the dey to day running of the Group.

+  Quality and Complisnce commitice, which i3 Cheired by the Divector of Governance and Includes senfor
operational and function leads directly related to education and care quality, meets monthly and {3 the senior
oversight of operational qualily and risk.

« Performance and Commercial Review committee, which is Chaired jointly by the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer, meets monthly 2nd is the senior oversight of the financiel snd commercial
performance of the business,

» Independent inspections, in ling with the relevant legisiation (tegulation 44 of The Children’s Hones
(England) Regulations 2015)) the Group bas a rolling programme of independent inspections that report into
the Bxecutive committee and above quality commiltee. These provide independent oversight over the quality
delivery of appropriats and compliant edueation and care services.



Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors® Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Going concern

‘The Board reviews forecasts of the Group’s projected trading and associated liquidity requirements based on a range
ol scenarios to ensure it has suficient cash to meet its operational and financial needs. These lorecasts are underpinned
by detailed end embedded forecasling processes and procedures to provide granular visibility over both the near {erm
and long-term liquidily requirements of the Group, to inforin the Directors decision making on ell key financial
matters. The Direclors consider both short term and Jang-term forecasts for the business, ranging from roiling three-
month daily Nguoidity forecasting, annual budget and periodic intra year reforecasting processes, and longer term 3
yeat long range plans for the Group. Each of these projects the fiquidity and covenant headroom for the Group.

The Group made a loss before tax of £27.4m for the perlod ended 31 August 2022, this loss in the currenl peviod is
duiven by the non-cash impairment of goodwill (see note 15) of £19.7m and excep(ional costs of £7.3m, exciuding
these ilems the Group made 2 loss of £0.1m and an operating profit of £23.1m. The Group Is forecast lo make an
operaling profit during tho going concern petiod. The Group generates sufficient cash to cover its linbifities and surplus
balances ate held as cash reserves lo invest in the Group and suppori the business in fulwe periods. At 31 August 2022
the Group had debt of £165.0m due Lo its external lenders and finance lease liabilities of £160.5m. No loans were due
to our shareholders,

These canslderations inelude the availability of committed, buf undrawn, debt facilities that are available to the Group
to support peneral corporate and working capital purposes, As at 319 August 2022 these avaifable but undravwn
tacilities were £19,7m

The Directors assessment of going concern cansiders three primary areas!
1. Key fundamoenial business factors

The Group’s primary business, and majority of the Group’s revenues and cashflows, is generated viathe provision
of services with specific characteriatics that are key in considering dowmside risk:

Provision of essential services

The group provides essential education and care services to meel the needs of a wide spectrum of young peaple in
our socfety. The demand for these services has increased over the last decade and continues fo do so across the
counlry. Certain service areas are steted as a Governmental pricrity, hence funding is ringfenced for mauy of the
areas the Group provides.

Diversified papor base with fow credit visk across the significami maforily of the Group

The majority of the Group’s revenues and cashflows ave generaled from customers that are publicly funded, This
Payor includes over 180 Local Authovity customers actoss England, Wales and Scotland. In the majority of case
each LA services and fees are provided on bespoke commercial terms and paid for separately by each customer,
significantly reducing the customer congentration risk,

Establisked position qs q trusted provider

The Group is one of the leading providers of such services in the UK. The Group holds long standing relationships,
ofien held at both aperational and management levels, with its individual custorners, The Group has consistently
delivered above national betchmarks for quallty service provision and continues & plase, & a priorily, the
provision of the highest quality care to meet the needs of everyone it serves.

Strength, depih and experience of the Group's managemeni team and infrastricture

Over many years the Group has developed, and invested in, the strength and experience of lis workforce and
magagement team, These factors enable the naliomwide provision of our services 1¢ be managed within a rigorons
risk management framework, to respond lo ¢lsks as they arise.
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Going concern (continuwed)

Versatility of skiffs to meet demand changes

The skilis embedded in our workforce, and the nature of many of our facllitics, are such that we can be
responsive to changes In the needs and demands of the peaple we care for, their fundets and regulators, This
agility reduces the fime taken to adapt the Group to best address its core merkeis,

Cash flovw visibility

The majority of young peaple In the UK. that we care for remain within our services for more than a year, and the
payment valuc and timing for the related services are largely defined et the culsel of cach placement, These
facturs provide a base for good visibilily over core trading performance and the working capital requlrements of
the business, Thereby leading te good levels of cash flow visibility over the near to medium term.

2. Assessment of the principal risks and lmpact of a severe but plausible dowaside sconario

In assessing the potential impact of ¢ vange of risk factors on the business the Directors have considered the
iikely impeot on the Group of & range of risks specific 1o the relevant business sector, as well as the compound
impact of risk factors in the broader macro environment that have evolved since the balance sheet date,

In particular, a severe but plausible downside scenario is cansidered by the Directors in ovder to assess the likely
impact of multiple different adverse factors imvpacting the Group simultsneousty, giving rise to a material
adverss impact an the Group’s profitability and liquidity during the going concern period. Further details can be
found In note 3 of the financial slatements

3. Conslderation of the controllable action that the Directors can talie to mitigate a severe but plausihle
downside seenario

In response to downside visks the Group has a range of actions, within its control, that it could deplay lo mitigate
the impact. These include but ave not Limited to:

»  Reduction in non-essential capital expenditure, including the capital expenditure on future growth projects

*  Adapting or pausing of services where no demand exists to reduce or hait losses at a particular facility and
better deploy resources

*  Reduction in certaln areas of discretionary spend that would not have any short to medium term adverse
impact on the Group

In aggregate the inclusion of mitigation actions materially increases the level of liquidity and covenant headroom
further, versus the unmitigated scenatio

Having considered all of the sbove factord the Directars have concluded thers Is no material uncertainty en the
Group’s sbility to continue 25 & going, concen for the peried from the date of the approval of these financial
statements to 31 August 2024.



Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Repor( for the Period ended 31 Aupgust 2022 (continued)

Engagement witly employees

The Diractors recognise that the continued position of the Group in the specialist education, care and behavioural caic
industry depends on the quality and motivation of its employees. Well trained, engaged and quality employees are
crucial for the Group to ensure that service users receive the best quality care, The key quality performance indicators
the Group uses fo measure engagement and training arve: the employee opinion survey, employee sickness levels and
compliance swith the Group e-learning programme, The Group hes low levels of sickness and high levels of compliance
with training programmes. Whilst moniloring these performance indicators, the Group continues lo review its
remuneration syslem to ensure it is fair, transpavent, flexible and provides individus! recagnitian. Employees have a
personal development plan lhat is monitored, assessed and medified during the annual appralsal pracess.

The Group recognises that good and effective employee communications ave pertlcularly important to retaining and
motivating empioyecs, and throughout (he business it is the Directors’ policy (o promote the unders(anding by aff
employees of the Group’s business aims, putpose, performance and individuat opportunities for personal and career
development. This is achieved through inlernal publicetions, presentations on performance and a variety of other
appreaches appropriate for a perticular location. Employecs are consulted on issues through our Adlive Colleague
Engagement (' ACE*) forumis. In all these areas, the Group continues to further invest in resource and IT solutlons in
order to deliver a positive experience for all our colleagues.

The Directars Believe that it is important to recruil and retain capable and caving staff repardless of their gender,
mavital status, race or religion. Tt is the Group’s policy to give full and fajr consideralion to applications for
employment from people who are disabled, lo continue wherever possible the employment of and to arrange
appropriate training for, employees who become disabled and to provide egual oppoctunities for the career
development, training and promotion of disabled employces.

Charltable Donatians

Durlng the period the Group made charitzble donation of £50,000. Individua( donations were as follows:

Charity £

UNICEF — Ukraine sppeal 50,000
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Asptis Holdeo Limited

Dircetors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Streamlined energy and carbon reporiing

In April 2019, the Department for Business, Energy and Industriai Strategy introduced a new repoiting reguletion
entitled the Streenilined Energy and Carbon Reporting Framework (“SECR’™), replacing vavious other reparting
requirements. QJrganisations subject to SECR are required to include infotmation relating to their encrgy usage and

carbon entssions,

The energy used and emissions the period ended 31 August 2022 are as follows;

Emission type Total Cnleuiated
Volume Emissions

(lcWhy {Tonnes of

CO%)

Scope 1 {direot} 13,814,587 2,954.9
Scope 2 (indirect) 5,020,739 970.9
Scope 3 (indirect) 26,798 26.8
Total 18,862,124 3,952.6

Scope | Emissions (direct) are Emissions from activitics owned or controlled by the Group, that release emissions
into the atmosphere, scope [ emissions for Aspris Group include amongst other, combustion in ovned boilers and

vehicles.

Scope 1 Emissions (direct) for the peviod are as follows!

LEnergy type Definition Total Caleulated
Volume Einisslons
(KWh) (Tonnes of
C0%)
Gas Emissions frem combustion of gas 6,407,987 1,169.7
Other Fuels Ernissions from combustion of fuels for stationary 7,153,714 1,532.3
machiaery and engines
Traosport Emissions from combustion of fuels for transport 252,886 252.9
purposes
Total 13,814,587 2,954.0

Scope 2 Emissions (indirect) are emissions released inlo the atmosphere associated with the Groups consumption of
puichased electricity, heat, and cooling. These are indirect emissions that are a consequence of the Group’s

activities, but which oceur ot sources that the Group does nat own or control.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Strenmlined energy and earbon reporting (confinued)

Scope 2 Bmissions (indirecl) for the period are as follovys:

Eunergy {ype Definition Tatal Calculated
Volume Fuissions

(K¥Wh) {Tomues of

~ CO%)

Eleclricity Emissions from purchased electeicily 5,020,739 270.9
Total 5,020,739 970.9

Scope 3 Emissions {indirecl) are emissions that are a consequence of the actions of the Group, which occur at source
which are not classified as scope 2 emissions. Examples of Scope 3 emissions are business travel by means not
owned or controlied by the Group.

Scope 3 Emissions {indirect) for the period ate as follows:

Energy type Definifion Tatal Calculated
Yolume Emissions
(KkWh) {Tonnes of
CO%y
Emplayee-owned cars ~ Emissions from business travel in rental cars or 26,798 26.8

eniployee-owned vehicles where the company is
responsible for purchasing, fue! (mandatory)

Total 26,798 26.8

Intensity Ratlo

The Group monitots an Intensity ratio In the form of a comparison of emissiens to turnover:

Intensity measure Turnover Intensity
£ Ratlo’
Tonnes CO% per total £m turnaver 179.2 22.06
Total Toamsx T 2286
"\COerTumover £m

Quantification and reporting methodology

The Group has taken guidance from the UK Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines (March 2019), the
GHG Reporting Protocol - Corporate Standord, and from the UK Government GHG Conversion Factors for
Company Reporting document for caloulating carbon emissions, Energy usage information (gas and electricity) has
been obtained directly from our enerpy suppliers and half-howrly (HH) data, where applicable, for the HH supplies.
For supplies where there wee hot compiete perlods encrgy usage avatlable, flal profile estimatlon techniques were
used to complete the periads consutnplion. Transport mileage data was obtained from expense claims submlited by
the Group’s cars and grey fleet. CO% emissions were calculated using the appropriate emission factors 2022 from
the UK Government GHG conversion Information.
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Strenpulined cnergy and earbon veporting (continued)

Energy efficient action

In the past year the Group has undertaken various energy efficiency woiks acress the estate, including the upgrading
of AC systems, boilers and insulation. The Group have, at a nutnber of sites, commenced conversion of Qil heating
systems to more efficient LPG solutions. These [ocussed works are ongoing alongside general rofurbishments
undertaken including LED lighting and general efficicncies,

The Group will continue our efforts through participation in Phase 3 of BSOS (Eneigy Saving Opportunities Scheme)
to assist in the targeting and reduction of its carbon footprint through continued structured investment in energy
efficiency programmes.

Ethical frading

The Group endeavours to purchasc goods and services with the least environmental impact, Our efforts for waste
diversion from landfill, recycling, collection, and segregation have meant that the Group have diverted 59% of trade
waste eway from lagdfill. Aspris also recycled 35% of all trede waste penerated, and wve reniain committed to
increasing this percentage of recycling year an year, with 2 target of 50% by the end of 2023,

‘We continue to be supported in our efforts through the colleclion of recyclable materials, the collection and
conversion of our waste cooking oil to diesel, and other initiatives.

Disclosure of information to the aunditor

Each Dlrector has taken steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order {0 make themsalves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditor is aware of thal information, The Direclors
cotifirm thal there is no relevant information that they know of and of which they know the auditor is unaware.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Trevor M Torringtp
Director

The Forge,

43 Church Street West,
Woking.

GU21 6HT

21 March 2023
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Aspris Holdco Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TQ THE MEMBERS OF ASFRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
Oiptninn on the finavclal staterents
in our opinion:

* the financial statements give a lrue and falr view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s
affalrs as at 31 August 2022 and of the Group’s loss for lhe perlod then ended;

»  the Group financiel staiements have bean properly prepared in accordance with UK ndopted inteimational
accounting standards;

«  the Parent Company financial statements have been propecly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Praciice; and

¢ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

We have sudited the financiaf sfaternents of Asptis [oldco Limited {*the Parent Company™ end its subsidiaries (“the
Graup") for the period ended 31 Avpust 2022 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolldated Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statemeni of
Changes in Equity, Stalement of Financlal Position, Stalement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows, Statement of Cash Flows and notes to ihe financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies, The financial reporting frameswork thal has been applied in (heiv preparation is applicable law and UK
adopted international accounting standavds, 2nd as regards the Parent Company finenclal slatements, as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006,

Basis for ophtion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Ouwr responsibilities under thase standerds are further deseribed in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audil of the
financial statements section of our report. We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in sccordance with the ethical requirements that ave relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Sthical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical vesponsibilities in accordance with these tequirements.

Couclusions velafig fo going concern

In auditing Ihe financia) statements, we have concluded that the Directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appromlate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any materiai uncertainties relating to events ov
conditions that, individuaily or colleclively, may casi significant doubt on the Group or Parent Company's ability to
continue a5 a golng concern fev a peried of at least bvelve months from when the financial sialements are authorised
for issue,

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are desciibed in the
relevant sections of this report,
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Aspris Holdeo Limited
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPIIS HOLDCO LIVITED
{CONTINUED)
Other information
The Directors are responsible for the alher information. The other information comprises the information included in
the Aonual Report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s repert thereon, Crur opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent oiherwise expiicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in deing so, consider whether the other information is materially
incongistent with the financial statements or owr knowledge obtained in the eowse of the audit or etherwise appears
1o be materially misstated, 1f we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material missiatements, we are
required to determine whetter this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves, If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are requived to report that facl,
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Other Companies Act 2006 roporting

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

* the information given in the Strategic report and (he Directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financia? statements are prepared is cansistent with the financial stalements; and

» the Stategic report and the Directars® report have been prepared in eccordance with applicable legal
requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and its environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have not identified matsiial misstatements in the Strategic report or the Directors’ vepost,

We have nothing to report in vespect of the following matters in 1elation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; ov

¢ the Parent Company financial stalements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

« certain disclosures of Directors® remuneration specifted by law are not made; or

= we have not recoived all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
Responsibilities of Directors
As explained more fully in the Stalement of Directors' Responsibilities, the Ditectors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal

cantro? as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparalion of finenciai statements that ave free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraund or exor,
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Agpris Holdco Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REFORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITEDR
(CONTINUED)

In preparing Lhe financinl statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company’s
ability to continue as a golng concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going concern and using the going
concern besis of accounting unfess the Ditectors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Comtpany or fo
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Muancial statements

Qur objectives are to oblaip reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements as 2 whole ere fice from
material missiatement, whether due to fraud or erar; and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance js a high Jevel of nssurance, but is not 8 guarantes that an audit conducted jn accordance with
ISAs (UK) will slways detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise fiom fraud or error and
are considered mralerial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expecied to influence the
eoonomic decisions of users faken on the basis of these financial statements.

Extent o which the audif was capable of detecting jrregulariiies, wchding frand

Irregulatities, including fraud, are inslauces of non-compliance with laws end regulations, We design procedures in
Tine with our responsibilities, outlined above, 1o detect malerfal misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. The extent lo which gur procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:;

We have Identified and assessed the potentisl risks related to irregularities, including fraud, by considering the
following:

o the nature of the industry, including the design of the Group's remuneration policies;

o enquiries of management regarding; complisnce with laws and regulations; the detection and
respense o the tisk of frand and any knowledge of actual, suspecled or alleged frand; and the
conirols in place to mitigate risks refated to fraud or non-compliance wilh latys and regulstions.

o obialning an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework in which the Group operates,
including employment law, and Health and Safety requirements,

o performing procedures to verify the existence of revenues, and consider the risks around the
fraudulent recognition of amounts.

We have responded to risks identified by performing procedures including the following:
o enquiry of management concerning actual and potential litigation and claims;

o veviewing the financial statement disciosures and (esting o supporting documentation to assess
compliance with relevant laws and regulalions;

o performing analytical procedures to identify any unususl or unexpeoled relationships which may
indicate risks of misstatement due to fraud; and

o reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance identify any instances of non-
compliance with laves and repulations.

We have elso considered the risk of [raud through menagement override of controls by:

o sample lesting the appropriateness of joumal entries and other adjustments; assessing whethey the
Judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of e potential bias; and evaluating
the business rationnle of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course
of business,
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Aspris Holdco Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REFORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASFRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

o discussing among the enpagement \eam how and where fraud might ocewr in the financial statements
and any potential indicators of fraud. As part of this discussion, we consideved potential for frand
inr revenue recopnition, specifically in relation to revenue existence, as well as the potential for
management overide of controls specificelly in relation to the posting of journal adjustments and
the inappropriate use of estimates.

o  in addressing the risk for fraud in revenue vecagnition, testing the appropristenass of the revenue
recognition policies and the application of these policies and performing specific procedures over
the existence and cut-off of revenue; and

o discussing with management and those charged with governance whether thoy are aware of any
frauds, or non-compliatice with Jaws and regulations, during the period.

Our audit procedures were designed to rvespotid to fisks of material misstatement in the financial statemenis,
recoguising that the risk of not delecting 2 material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting
one resulting from crror, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery, misvepresentations or
through collusion. There are inherent limitations In the audit procedures perforned and the further removed non-
cornpliance with [aws and repulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial siatements, the less
likely we are to become aware of il.

A finther deseription ef our vesponsibilities is available on the Finsncial Reporting Council’s website at:

hitpsihnew, fro.otg.uidauditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.
Use of our report

This veport is made solely to the Parent Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’ s report and for no other purpose. T'o the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Parent Company and the
Parent Company's mernbers as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opiniens we have formed,

Docusighed by:

Paul Eflueringon.

EAQGCECFA0ARICT ...

Paul Etherington BSc FCA CF (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Btatutory Auditor
Reading, UK

22 March 2023

BDO LLP is a limited liability parinership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Consolidated Income statement tor the period ended 31 August 2022

Nate 2022

£1n

Revenye 4 179.2

Opersling cosls (156.1)

Hxeeptional {tems 10 (1.8)

Tmpairment loss 15 (19.7)

Other losses 8 (0.3)
Operating loss T @ “7n

Wet finance cosis 9 (22.7)
Luoss belore taxation :“_(2_@

Income tax 11 03
Loss attributable to tite owners of the Group —(2.'1'_1)_—
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period to

31 August 2022
2022
£m
Loss for the pertod (27.1

Total conprehensive income for the period (27.1)
i
|
|
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Aspris Holdeo Limited
Registration Number: 13534635

Consolidated Statement of Financial Pogition as at 31 August 2022

MNote 2022
£m
Assefs
Non-current assets
Property, planl and equipmenl 12 158.1
Right of use assets 13 1564
Intangible assets i4 143.4
457.9
- Current assets
Trade and other recelvables 18 24.5
Cash and cash equivalent 10 . 18.1
42,6
Total assets ’ 500.5
Current liabilities
Leasc liabililies 13 {5.1)
Trade and other payabies 24 (21.5)
Income {ax liability {0.9)
Deferred Income 20 (28.8)
(56.3)
Net current liahilities (13.7)
Non-current Ifabilities
Lease liabilities 13 (155.4)
Loans and berroyings 21 (159.6)
Provisions 23 (1.00
Doferred tax linbilities 26 (36.2)
(352.2)
Net assets 92.0
Share capiial 21 846
Share premium 4.5
Accumulated losses (27.1)
Total equity 52,0

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

21 March 2023
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the Period ended

August 2022
Share capital Shave Retnined Total equity
Premium Earnings
Loss for the period (27.1) 271
Total compreliensive income 271 271.1)
Mew share capital subseribed 84.6 34.5 - 1191
At 3] Aupust 2022 _ 84.6 34.5 (27.1) 92.0
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Aspris Holdeo Limited
Registration Number; 13534635

Company Statement of Financial Position as at 31 August 2022

Nate 2022
£m
Assefs
Non-current asscts
Investments in subsidiaies : i) 119.1
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 18 0.2
Cash and cash equivalent 19 0.7
0.9
Tuotal nssety 1200
Cuvrent liabilities
Trade and other peyables 24 [}
Net current assets/(linbilities) -
Net assets 115.1
Shave capital 21 84.6
Share premium 34.5
Total equity 119.1

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption conferred by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 from
presealing its own profit and loss account, The Company’s loss for the year was £19,000.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by,

Trevor M Torrlnglo,
Director

Dyirector

21 March 2023
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Company Statement of Changes in Equity for the Period ended Augunst 2022

Share eapital Bhare Retained Total equity
Premium Earnings
Loss for the pertod - -
Total conprehensive income - -
Mew share capltal subseribed 84.6 34.5 - 1191
At 31 August 2022 84.6 34.5 - 1519.1
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Congolidated Staternent of Cash Flows for the Period ended 31 August 2022

Nate 2022
£m
Cash flows frow operating activitles
Eoss for the period (27.0)
Ad]ustments for:
Depreciation and amorligation & 13.7
Depreciation on right of use assets 6 8.5
Tmpalement of poodivill 15 19.7
L.oss on disposal of property plant and equipment 8 0.3
Finance income 9 (0.1)
Finance vgsts 9 22.8
Share of loss of equity accounted inveslees 0.5
Income tax un 0.3)
38.0
Worlkdug capital ndjustments
Increase in Irade and other receivables [(XD)]
Increase in frade and other payables 4.1
Increase in provisions 0.2
Decrease in deferred income (0.1)
Cash generated from eperations 358
Income taxes paid (1.8)
Net cash flow from operating netivities 34.2
Cash flows firont invesiing activities
Interest recelved 9 0.1
Acquisilions of property plant and equipment 12 (12.1)
Proceeds fiom sale of property plant and equipment 1.0
Advances of loans to joint ventures 16 (1.1)
Actuisition of subsidiaries ~ net of cash acquired 17 (323.7
(135.8
Chnsh flows from financing activitics
Interest paid {11.3)
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 115.1
Proceeds from external borroywing draw downas 158.6
Repayment of exiernal borrowing 41.3)
Repayment of Joans advarced from frmer parent 17 (96.1)
Principal paid on lease liabilities 13 (4.8)
Interest paid on lease liabilities 13 (16.5)
119.7
Net incrense in, and closing eash and eash equivalents 19 18.1
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022

1. General information

The company is a piivate company limited by shave capitel, incorporated in England and Wales and domiciled in
United Kingdom, regisiration number 13534635, Aspris Holdco Limited Group includes the Aspris Childien’s
Services Abu Dhabi Branch.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board on 17 March 2023
2, Accounting policies
Statement of compliance

The Group financial statements have been prepeved in accordance with Imernetiona) Financial Repoiting Standards
and its interprelations adopted by the UK ("UK adopted IFRSs").

Summary of significant accounting policies and hey estimates

The principal accounting policiss applied in the prepacation of thesc financial statements ate set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.

DBasis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements arc prepared in accardance with UK adopted international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the companies act 2606 as applicable to companles using TFRS,
The Company has elecled to prepare its parent Company financial statements in accordance with UK. generally
nccopted accounting principles (UK GAAP), including FRS 101

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost accounting rufes.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 end
elected not to present its own Statement of Comprehensive Income in these financial stajements.

Guoing concern

The Board revicws forecasts of the Group’s liquidily requirements based on a vange of scenacios to ensure it has
sufficient cash to meet operational and financial needs. These forecasts are underpinned by detailed and embedded
forecasting processes and procedures o provide granular visibility over both the inear term and long-term liquidity
requiremnents af the Group, to inform the Directors’ decision making on all key financial metters, The Divectors
consider both short term and long-term forecasts for the business, ranging fiom rolling three-month daily lquidity
ferecasting, annual budget and periodic intra year reforecasting processes, and longer term 3 year long range plans
for the Group. Each of these projects the liquidity and covenant headroom for the Group,

The Group made & loss befors tax of £27.4m for the period ended 31 August 2022, 1his 1oss in the current period
reflects the non-cash impairment of goodwill (see note 15) oL £19.7m and exceptional of £7.8m, exciuding these
items the group made & [oss of £0,1m and an operating profit of £23.1m. The Group is forecast ta make an operating
profit during the going concern petiod. The Group generates sufficient cash to cover lts liabifities and surplus
balances are held as cash reserves to invest in the Group and support the business in future periods. At 31 August
2022 the Group had debt of £165.0m due o its external lenders and finance lease |iabilities of £160,5m. No loans
were due to out shareholders.

As part of their considecations the Directors review a range of different scenarios, including a severc but plausible
downside scenario o assess the impact on both the lquidity and covenant headroom of the Group, see note 3.
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Basls of conszolidation

Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022

{continued)

The Group financlal slatetnents consolidate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary underlakings
dravn up le 31 August 2022,

A subsidhary Is an enlity controlled by the Company. Control is achisved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as lo obtain benefits from its activities,

The results of subsidiaries acquired av disposed of during the yeav are inciuded in (he income statement fiom the

effective datc of aequisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are
made Io the financia) statements of subsidiaries-to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by the
Group.

The purchase method of accounting is used (o account far business combinations that resull in the acquisition of
subsidiaries by the Group, The cosl of a buslness combination 1s measured as the falt velue of (he assets given,
equily instroments Jssued and liabjlities incutved or assumed 21 the date of cxchange, plus cosis directly attiibutable
to the business combination, Identifiable assets acquired and fiabilities and conlingent liabilities assumed in a
business eombinalion are measured initially af their fair values st the acquisition date. Any excess of the cost of the
business combination over the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent [iabilities recognised is recorded as goodwill,

Inter-company transactions, balances and utirealised gains on transactions between the Company and its
subsidiacies, which are related pariies, are eliminaled in fuil.

Intra-group losses are also eliminated but may indicate an impaivment that requires recognition in the consolidated

financial stalements,

Changes In accounting policy

The following amendmenis are effective for the period beginning 28 July 2021:

*

None of the standards, interpretations and amendments effective for the firsk time from 28 July 2021 have had &
matetiat effect on the financial statements,

The following new standards, interpretstions and amendments avs nol yet effect:

- » & & 3

None of the standards, interpretations and amendments which ace effeciive for periods beginning alter 28 July 2021
and which have not been adopled early, ere expected to have a material effect on the financlal statements.

Amendments to [FRS L7 Insurance Conéracts

Amendment 10 EAS 1 “Classificalion of Liabilities as Current or Non-cuirent
Amendmnents to IFRS 3 “Definilion of a business”
1AS 16: PPE; Proceeds before intended use
TAS 37: Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contracl
Annual lmprovement eycle to IFRS (2012-2020 Cyole)
o 1FRS 1: Subsidiary as 4 first time adopter
o IFRSY: fees in the ' 10 per cent' test for derecognition of financlal {iabilities
o IFRS i6: Lease incentives amended example
1AS &: Definition of accounting estimates
IAS 11 Disclosure initiatlve — accounting policies
Amendmenis lo IAS 12 "Deferred tax relatlng 1o assets and liabilities arislhg from a single transaction™
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Augnst 2022
{continued)

Revenue Recognition
Recaghttion

Revenus s recognised based upon the nuimber of people per day io which we bave provided a service, These volume
mefrics are recovded and combined with the applicable fee rate per person per service, to devive the total revenue to
be vecognized, There iz limited judgemental fnput this process

Revenue is recognised as pecformance abligations are satisficd as conlrol of services s trensferred 1o the customer.
The Group has determined that most of its performance obligations are satisfied over time a5 the client
simultaneously received and consumes the benefits provided by the Grovp as the education or care services are
rendered. In the circumstances, revenue is recognised at the amount which the Group has the right to invoice, where
that amount corresponds directly with the value to the customet of the Group’s perfoiinance completed to date.

The principles in IFRE are applicd to revenne recognition ariteria nsing the following 5 step model:

1. Tdentify the conlracts with the customer

2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract

3. Determine the transaction price

4, Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
5. Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies its performance oblipations

Fee arrangements

Below are details of fee arrangements and how these are measuved and recognised, for vevenue from the provision of
services; ’

Aspris delivers specisl education and care services to its service users in line with contragtual agrecments, which
clearly state the nature of the services to be provided over what time period. The main perforniance obligations in
coniracts consist of delivery of services to service users. For all contracts the stage of completion and delivery of
performance obligations are meagured af the balance sheet date by reference to services delivered to service users at
that date.

Transcaetion price

To calculate the transaction price of confracts rates are applied daily or by specific scrvice provided to service users
as detailed in contractual agreetnents,

Payment ferms

Payment terms range from payment in advance of services delivered to within a range of specified deys of receipt of
service or invoice, dependant on the specific clreumstances and needs of the service users,

Tax

The tax expense for the peried comprises current tax, Tax is recognised in profif or loss, except that & change
attributeble te an itern of income or expense recognised as other comprehensive income is also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income. :

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been cnacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date in the countrics where the Group operates and generates taxable income.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plent and equipment is stated in the statement of financial position at cost, Jess any subsequent
accumulaled deprecialion and subsequent sceumulated impairment losses.

The cost of properly, plant and equipment includes directly attributable Incremental costs Incurred in their
acquisition and Installation.

Deprecintion

Depreciation Is charged so 8s lo weite off the cost of assets, other than land and properiies under construction over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Asset elass - Years depreclated over

Freehold buildings 50 yeats

Leasehold buildings The lease term

Fixtures and fittings 3 to 16 years

iofor vehicles The shart of the lease term or 4 years

Intangible asscts

Goodwill arising on the acquisitlon of an entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Gronp’s
interest in (he net fair value of the {denlifiable assets, [{abilities and conlingent [iabilities of the entify recognised at
the dale of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less
any sccumulated impairment losses, Goodwill is held in the currency of the acquired enlily and revalued to the
closing rate at each reporting period date.

Goodwlll is not subject to amartisation but is tesied for impaiment on al least an annual basis. The impaivment test
compares the recoverable value of a cash genetating unit (*CGU’), the value in use of that CGUJ and the carrying
value of the intaugible asset in accordance with IAS36, This assessment factors in the latest developments within
each CGU, including amongst elher factors, current trading, capacity and steffing constraints to assess an estimation
of the future cashflows and the determination of  discount rate in order lo caleulate the present value of {hose cash
flows,

Negative goodwill arising on an acquisition is recopnised directly in the income statement. On disposal of a
subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity, the altributabie emount of goodwill s included in the detenninalion of the
profit or loss recognized in the income statement on disposal,

Separately acquived trademarks and licences are shown at historical cost,

Trademarks, licences {including softwere) and customer-related intangible assets sequired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continned)
Amortisation

Aumortisation is provided on intangible asscts so as to write off the cost, less any eslimated residual value, over their
expected useful economic [ife as follows:

Asset elass Years amortised over
Cuslomer conlracts 6 to 17 years

‘The amortisation perieds ave based on expected customer churn rates and, where relevant, the length of fixed-term
customet conlvacts

Valuation of invesimerts

Investments in subsidiaries held by the company are measured at cost less sy accutnulated impatrment in the
contpany’s slatement of finaucial position,

Cash and eash cquivalents ‘

Cash and cash equivalents comptise cash on hand and call deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments
that are rcadily convettible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from cuslomers for services performed in the ordinary cowse of business. If
collection is expected in one year or less (or in the notmal aperating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets, If not, they ere presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables ave recognised initially at the transaction price. They are subsequently measurcd at emortised cost
using the effective interest inethod, less provision for impairment. A provision for the impairment of lrade
receivebles is established when there Is objective evidence that the Group wlili not be able 10 collect al! amounts due
according to the original terms of the recebvables.

Trade payables

Trade pryables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers, Accounts payable are classified as current Habilities if payment is due within one year or
less {or in the normal operating cycle of (he business if longer). 1f not, Ihey are presented as non-current fiabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initielly at the transaction price and subsequently messored at antortised cost using
the effective interesi method.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes fo the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
{continued)

Borrowlngs

All borrowings are inltiatly recorded et the fair value which is often the ammount receivad, net of {ransaction costs.
Borrowings are subsequently carried al amortised cost, with the differsnce belween the proceeds, net of transaction
costs, and the amount due on redemiption being recognised =s a chargs to the incorne statement aver the period of Lhe
relevant botrowing,

{nterest expense is recognised on the basis of the effective interest method and is included in finance costs,

Boirowings arc classified as currenl liabilities unless the Group has an uncenditional right 1o defer settlement of the
liability for sl least 12 months afler the reporting dale.

Deferved tax

Deferred tax is recognised on tenporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitics in the
consalidated finagelal statements and the corresponding tex bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax ligbilities are generally recognised for all {faxable temporary diffevences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available egainst which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferted tax assets gud
liabilities ate not vecognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition {other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilitiss are not recopnised if tlic temporary difference asises from the initial recognition
of goadwill,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associales, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group Is eble to conlrel the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not veverse in the {oreseeable future. Deferred tax
agsets arising from deductible temporavy differences associaled with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the exlent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which {o wfilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed al the end of each reporting period and rednced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tex liabilitics and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on lax rales {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assels reflects the tax conseguences that would follow fiom the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, 1o recover or settle the cavrying amount of its
assets and labilities.
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Aspris Holdeco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Exceptional items

Tiems that are both material and non- reoccuriing and whose significance js sufficient to warrant separate disclosure
and identification within the consolidated financia! information are referred to as exceptional [lems. Items that may
give rise to classification as exceptional include but ave note Jimited to, significant and material yeorganisation and
restructuring programmes, re-financing and acquisition costs, Fuither details of exceptional items can be found in
nate 10,

Provisious

Provislons are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a religble estimale can be mude of the
amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the Direclors® best estimate of the expenditure required o settle the obligation at the
reporting date and are discounted o present value where the effect is material.

Leases
Definltion

A [eage is a contract, or a part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset or a physically distinct pert of an
assel (“lhe underlying asset”) for a period of titne in exchange fov considecation, Fuithey, the conteact must convey
ths right fo the Group to control the ssset or a physically distinct portion thereaf. A contract is deemned to convey the
right to cantrol the underlying asset if, throughout the period of use, the Group has the rvight to:

*  Obtain subslantialiy all the economic benefits from the use of the undertying asset, and;
*  Direct the use of the underlying asset (e.g, direct how and for what purpose the asset is used)

Tuttial recagiition and measurement

The Group initiaily recognises a lease liability for the obligation to make lease payments and a right-of-use asset for
the right to use the underlying asset for the lease term,

The leasc liability is measured at the present value of the lcase paytnents to be made aver the tease tern, with the
discount rate determlned by reference ta the rate inherent in the lease unless (ps is lypically the case) this is not
readity determinable, in which case the Group®s incremental borrowing rate on commencetent of the lease is uged.
The lease payments include fixed payments, purchase options at exercise price (where payment Is reasonably
cerlain), expected amount of residual value guarantess, termination option penalties (where payment is considered
reasonably certain) and vaviable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, Tn such cases, the inftial
mesasutement of the lease !ability assumes the variable elemenl will remain yrchanged througheut the lease term.
Other variable lease payments are expensed in the period to which they relate.

The right-of-uge sset is initielly measured at the smaount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease prepayments, lease
incentives received, the Group’s initial direct costs (e.g. commissions) and an estimate of restoration, removal and
dismantifng costs.

Subsequent nreasurement

After the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability by:

(a) Increasing the carrying amount fo reflect interest on the lease liability;

(b) Reducing the cariying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and

{c) Re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessmant or lease modifications or to reflect revised in
substance fixed lease payments or on the oceutrence of other specifio events.
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Agpris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Lieases (cotttinued)

Intorest on the lease liability in cach pertod during the lease term is the amovnt that produces a constant pericdic rale
of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability, Tntevest charges are presented separately as non-operating
costs, included in finance cost, in the income statement, unless the costs are included in the carrying amount of
another asset applying other applicable standards,

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability, are included in operating sxpenses in
the period in which the evenl or condition that triggers themn arises,

The related right-of-use asset is aocounted for using the Cost model in IAS 16 and depreciated and charged in
accordance with the depreciation requirements of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment as disclosed in the
accounting policy for Property, plant and equipment. Adjustiments are imade to the canying value of the right of use
asset whore Lhe lease Liability Is re-measured in accordance with the above. Right of use assets ars tested for
impainnent in accordance with JAS 36 Impalrment of assels as disclosed in the accounting policy in impairment.

Lease modifications

If a lease is modified, {he modified coniract is evaluated to determine whether it is or contains & lease. i a Jease
continues la exist, the lease mod{fication will result in either a separate lease or a change in the accounting for the
existing lease,

The modification is accounted For as & separate lease if both:

{a) The medification increases the scope of [be lease by adding the right 1o use one or moere underlying assets; and
(b) The consideration for the lease Increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any approprigte adjusiments lo that stand-alone price to reflect the circumslances of the particular
contract.

If both of these conditions are inet, the lease modificatlon results in two separate icases, the unmedified originat
lease and a separate lease, The Group then accounts for these in line with the accounting palicy for new Jeases.

If either of the conditions are not met, the modified lease is not accounted for as a separate lease and the
consideration is allocated to the contract and the lease liability is re-measured using the lease term of the modified
lease and the discount rate as determined at the effective date of the modification.

For a modification that fully or partiaily decreases the scope of lhe lease (¢.g, reduces the square footage of Jeased
space), [IFRS 16 1equires a lessee to decrease tha carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect partial or full
termination of the [ease. Any difference between thase adjusiments is recognised in profit or loss af the effeclive
dale of the modification.

For all other lease modifications which are not accounted for as a separate lease, IFRS 16 requives the iessee to
tecognise the amount of the re-measurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the conesponding right-of-use
agset without effecting profit or loss.

Short term and Iow valie leases

The Group has made an accounting policy election, by class of underlying asset, not to recogaise lease assets and
lease liabilitics for leases with e leass term of 12 months o less (i.e. shott-term leases).

The Group has made an accounting policy election on a lease-by-lease basis, nol to recognise lease assets on leasss
for which the underlylng assel is of low value.

Lease paynients on short term and low value leases ave accounled for on a straight line bases over the term of the
lense or other sysiematic basis if considered move appropriale, Short term and low value lease payments are included
in operaling expenses in the income stetement.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Share capltal

Ovdinary shares ure classified ag equity. Equity instroments are nieasuied ot the fair value of the cash or ofher
resources received oo receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments. If payment is deferred and
the time value of money is mateiial, the initial measurement is ov a present value basis.

Defined coutributien penslon obligation

A defined contribution plan is & pension plan under which fixed contributions are paid into a separate entity and has
no legal or consliructive abligations o pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay &ll
employees the benelits relating to empioyee service in the current and prior periods.

Firancial instruments
Initial recognition

Financial assets and financinl liabilities comprise all assets and Jiabilitics rellected in the statement of financial
position, excluding properly, plant and cquipment, inlaugible assets, deferred tax assets, prepayments and dofetred
tax liabilities.

The Group recognises financial assets and financial linbilities in the statement of financial position when, and anly
when, the Group becomes party 1o the contrachual provisions of the financisl instrument,

Financial assets ave initially recognised at fair value, Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value,
representing the proceeds received net of premiums, discounts and fransaction costs that are divectly sttributable to
the financial liability.

Purchases or sales of a financial assets undey a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the time
frame estabiished generally by regulation or convention in the markelplace concerned ave defined es a repular way
purchase or sale, All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as fair
value through profit or foss (“FYTPL”) are recognised on the trade date, i.e, the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or self the financial assets or financial liabilities. All regular way purchases and sales of other financial
assets and finencial liabjlities are recognised on the settiement date, i.e. the date on which the asset or lizbility &
veceived flom ot delivered to the counterparty, Regular way purchascs or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery within fhe time frame generally established by regulation or conveation in the
marketplace,

Subsequent to initlal measurement, financial assets and financial {inbilities sre measured at either amortised cost or
fair value.

Classification and measurerment

Financial instruments are classified at inception inlo one of the following categories, which then determine the
subsequent meagurement methodology: -

Financial assets ave classified into one of the following categeries:-
« financial assets at amortised cost;
«  financial assets at fair value through the profit gv lass (FVTPLY or
Financtal liabililies eve classified into one of the following two categovies: -
s financial liabilities at amortised cost; or
» financial liabilities at fair value through the profit or loss (FVTPL).
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Tinancial insbruments (continued)

The classification and ihe basis for measurement are subject to the Group’s business mode! for managing (he
financial essels and the contrzctual cash flow chevacteristics of the financial assets, as detalled below;-

Flinancial arsels af amortised cost

A {inanzial asse! is measured at amortised cosl if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

s the assels are held within a business model whose objective is fo hofd assets in ovder 1o collect confraciual
cash flows; and

e the conlractusl lerms of the financlal assets pive rise on specified dates to cash [lows that arc solcly
pryments of principal and interesl on the principal amount cuistanding.

If efther of the sbove two crileria is not met, the financlal assets are classified and measured at fair value through the
profit or foss (FYTPL).

If a financial asset meels the amortised cost criterin, the Group may choose to designate the financip! asset al
FYTPL. Such an election is itrevocable and applicable only if the FVTPL classification significantly reduces a
measurement ¢r recognition inconsistency.

Financial assels ot foir value theough the prafit er loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets not otherwise classified above are classified and measured as FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at ainortised cost
All financial labilities, other than those classified as financial Jliabilities at FVTPL, ave measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate mathod,

Finanelal Rabilities al fair value through the profif or loss
Financlal liabilliies not measured at amortised cost ave cinssified and measured at FVTPL, This classification includes
derivative liabitities.

Derecgpnition

Financlal assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset when;

= the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,

s it transflers the right to receive the contractual cash fiows in a transaction in which substantially alf of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assel ave transferred; or

*  the Group neither transfers nor vetains substentially ell of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does
not retaln control of the financlal asset.

On derecognition of a financial assel, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and 1he sum of the
consideration received is recognised as & gain ot loss in the profit or loss.

Any cumnlative gain or loss recognised in QCI in respect of equity investment secutities designated as FVTOCI is

not recognised in pro(if or loss on derecognilion of such securities. Any interest in Lransferred financial assels that
quelify for derecognition that is created or retained by the Group is vecoghised as a separafe asset or liability.
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Financial Instraments (continued)

The Group enters into transactions whereby [t transfers assels recognised on its statement of financial positian, but
rotains cither all or substantially all of risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. In such cases,
the transferred assets are not derecognised.

‘When the Group derecognises IransTerred financiel assets in their entirety, but has continuing involvement in them
then the entity should disclose for each type of continuing involvement at the reporting date:

(a) The carrying amount of the agsets and liabilities that are recognised in the entity’s slatement of
financiat position and represent the enlity’s continuing involvement in the derecognised finansial
assets, and the line items in which those assels and liabilities are recognised. |

(b} The fair value of the assets and liabilities that represent the entity’s continuing invo]vement in the

derecognised fInancial assets; i
(e) The amount that best represents the entily’s maximum exposure to loss from s continuing

involvemnent in the derecognised financial assets, and how 1he maximum exposure to 10ss is

determined
(d) The nadiscounted cash outflows thal would or may be required to repurchese the derecognised

financial assets or other amounls payable to the transferee for the transferred assels

Financial labilities
The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled, or expire.

Impairment of financial agsets
Measirement of Expected Credit Losses

The Group recopnises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial insituments that are not
measured at FVTPL, namely (rade and other receivables,

Provisions for credit-impairment are recognised in the statement of income and are reflected in acoumulated .
provision balances against each rclevant financie! instruments balance.

Evidence that the financial asset is credit-impaired include the following;

=  Significant financial difficuities of the bosrower or issuer;

s A breach of conhract such as default or past due svent;

»  The restructuring of the loan or advance by the Group on teuns that the Group would not consider
otherwise,

* Itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankeuptey or other financial reorganisation; or

+  There is other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of
borrgwers or issuers in the Group, or economic conditions that comelate with defaults in the Group, b

For {rade receivables, the Group applies the simplified appreach, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from tnftial recognition of the recelvables.

Trade receivables ave not subject to material or significant credit fosses. Credit risk is not considered to be significant
given that over 90% of revenuc is derived from publicly funded entities.
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Financial instrwments (continned)

Financial instriunents — Rislkk manageent

The Group is exposed to financial risks in the form of credit, interes! and liquidity zisks which asdse in the normal
course of business, The primary financial risks that the Group is exposed (o are noted below, for further delail on these
financial risks please see note 27,

The principat financial instruments used by the Graup, from which finsnctal Instrumment 1isk arises, are as follows:

s Trade recsivables

»  Cash deposits

s Senior and revolving eredit facilities con(aining a variable element linked to Sterling Overnight Index
Average

Capital Management
The Group’s objective when managing ifs capital is to ensurc that entities {o the Group will be able to continue as a

geing concern whilsl maximising returns for stakcholders ihrough the optimisation of debt and equity please see note
27 for the Group’s capltal structure,
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3. Critieal aceonmting judgements and key sources of estimation

Tho prepsration of the financial statements requlres management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of certaia financial assets, labililles, income and exponses.

The use of estimates and assuraptions is principally limiled to the determination of provisions for impainnent and
the valuation of financial instruments as explained in more detail beleaw:

Provigions for impairment

Tn determaining impairment of financial assets, judgement is required in the cstimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows as well as an asgessment of whetlher the credit risk on the fiancial asset has increased significantly
sinee initial recognition and incorporation of forward-looking information in the measurement of BCL.

Tair valws of financial gssets and ltabilities

Where the fair value of financial assets and lizbilities cannot be derived from active markeis, they ave determined
using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The inpul to these models is
detived from observable markels where available, butwhere this is not feasible, a degree of jndgement Is vequired ln
determining assumptions used in the modsls. Changes in assumptions wsed in the models could affect the reported
fair value of financial assets and liabilities.

Golng, Concern

The Board reviews forccasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements based on a range of scenarios to ensure it has
sufficient cash to meel operational and financial needs. These forecasts are underpinned by detailed and embedded
forecasting processes and procedures to provide granular visibility over both the near tesm gnd long term liquidity
requirements of the Group, to Inform the Directors deciston making on all key financlal matters. The Directors
consider both short term and long term forecasts for the business, ranging fiom rolling three month daily liquidity
forecasting, annual budget and periodic intra year reforecnsting processes, and ionger term 3 year long range plans
for the Group. Bach of thege projects the liquidity and covenant headroom fou the Group.

There are necessary estimates and judgements in the directors’ assessment of going concern these are considered in
detail in the strategic report.

In assessing fhe potential impact of a range of risk factors on the business the Directors have considered the Jikely
impact on the Group of a range of risks specific to the relevant business secior, a5 well as the compound impact of
risk factors in the broader macro envirenment that have evolved since the balance sheet date.

In particular, a severe but plausible downslde scenario Is considered by the Directors in order to assess the likely
impact of multiple different adverse factors impacting the Group simuftanecusly, giving vise to a material adverse
impact on the Group’s profitability and liquidity during the going concern period, Specifically, the severe but
plausible downside scenario assumes:

s Reduction in occupancy evels from base forecasts of an aggregate of approximately 284 for the going
concein pericd.

*  Costinflation:

o  Wage inflation — additional site-wide wage inflation of 1.0% beyond the Group's planned wage
increases (which already reflect announced National Living Wage, Teacher’s Pay Scale, and
other intemal increases)

o Non-Wage inflation - additional 1.0% cost inflation assumed beyond the Group’s base cage,
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Critlcal accounting judgements and key sources of estinzation (continued)

+  Fee Inflation — over and ahove the cost impacts the scenario comnsiders a mateial shortfall in the
proportion of fee increases that can be successtully achieved.

+ Interest rate increages — assumes 2 marked and sustained increase in interest rates, ant therefore the cash
Hows required to service the Group®s debt, The scengria faclors in Bank of England Bass rates exceeding
5% by May 2023 and holding at this level for the remaining going concern perind.

We do not consider that COVID-19 will have a material impact on the cashflows of the Group in the going concern
period.

The revenits and cost impact of such » scenaric would have 4 major negative impact on the Group’s profitability far
the going concern period. With operating profit being adversely impacted by approximately 30% in the period.
Furthermore, in adopting a prudent approach, the Directors have considered this scenavio before relevant mitigaling
aclions Lhat the business could jmplement to limit the adverse impect, Before the inclusion of such mitigations the
Group continues te forecast sufficient liquidity and financial covenant headroom,

Business Combinations

The Group undertaok three business combinations duting the period (note 17), In accordence with TFRS, the
purchase method of accounting has been used. The Directors determine and alfocate the purchase price of acquired
businesses at the date of the business combination. The purchase method requires significant estimates and
judgments.

While Directors use their best estimates and assumptions as part of the purchase price allocation process to
accurately value assels acquired and lisbiiiies assumed at the date of acquisition, estimptes and assumptions are
inherently vncerlain and subject fo refinement, Examples of critical estimales in valuing certain assets we have
acquired include;

»  future expected cashilows avising from assets and [iabilities,
+  the fair value of intangible and tangible assets, and
»  discount rates,

Usefiy] Economie life of intengible assets

The Directors have determined the uscful economic life of certain intangible assets acquired as part of business
combination. The amortisation periods are based on expected customer churn rates and, where relevant, the length of
fixed-term customer contracts,

Riptil of use gssets and liabilities

The Group leases a number of propetlies in the jurlsdictions in which it operates, recognised in accordance with
TFRS16 (note 13).

In calculating the assevlizbility attached to several of the leass agreements the Group has required use of an
Incremental Borrowing Rate (IBR”}. The IBR has considered the visk-free rate athibutable lo the currency, location
and [ease term of each property, adjusted to reflect the interest rates the Group would be able fo achieve based upon
its existing financing aurangenients.
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Critieal acconnting judgements and Jey sources of estimation (continued)

The Directers have applied judgement to detetnine the jease term for contracts that include a yenewa) or break
option. Extension options and break clauses ere included in a number of the Group’s lease agreements {0 maximise
the ftexibility in managing operational assets. In determining the lease term, the Directors have consldered alf facts,
circumstances and the exercise dates of such clauses. Extension options and break clauses are only reflected i the
lease term if there is reasonably certainty they will be exercised.

Impairment of gondwill and intangible fixed pssets

The Directors must assess whether intangible assets have been impaired during the poriod, Faclors taken into
conslderation in reaching such a deciston include the economic viability and expected future financial performanse
of the asset and where il is 2 component of a lavger cash generating unit, the viabilily, expected future performance
of that unit using a discounted cashflow inodel as at ihe period end and the assessed fair value of each cash
gencrating unit. The key eslimates and assumptions that feature in the impairment test is the selection of pre-tax
discount rate relative to the specific risks of the cash-generating unit and the preparation of pre-tax cash flows using
divector approved forecasts with growth ratcs that represent the Directors® best estimales, (note 15)
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4. Revenue

The snalysis of the Group’s revenue for the perlod is as follows:

2022
£m
Turnover 178.6
Other revenue 06
1792
The analysis of the revenue by geographic region is as follows:
2022
m
UK based divisions 176.5
Middle East based divisions 2.7
1792
5, Staff costs
The aggrepale payroll costs (including directors' remuneration} were as follows:
2022
Zm
Wages and salaries 91.4
Social security costs 8.0
Pengion costs, defined contribution schetiie 4.5
103.9

The average number of persons employed by the Group (including the Direclors) during the peried, analysed by
calegory was as follows:

2022

No.

Sile and operationat 2,987
Administralion and support 174
3,161
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6. Operating loss

Axtived at after chargingf{crediting)

2022

£m

Depreciation expense 8.7
Depreciation on right of use asscts 8.5
Amorlisation expense 5.0
Expense on short lerm leases 0.9

7. Auditors’ remuneratlon

Audit fees of £0.5m weve incutred by the Group during the petjod, all fees relate to the audit of the Group, There

were no fees incurred related to non-audit services.

8.  Other gains and losses

The Group’s other galus or losses for the period are as follows:

2022
£m
L.oss on disposul of ptoperty plant end equipment 0.3
9, TFinance itcome aud cogis
2022
£m
Finance income
Interest oit bank deposits 0.1
0.1
Finance costs
Interest on external borrowings 12,0
Interast on lease liabilities N 10.8
22.8
Net finance costs 227
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10, Exceptlonal itews

2022
£m
Acquisition costs refated lo business combinations 5.8
Aspris fornation and reosganisalion costs 1.3
Ofther iransaction costs and charltable donations 0.7

7.

Acquisition costs on business combinations relate to the acquisition of Aspris Children's Serviees Limited (£2.6m)
from the Prioty Group, the acquisition of SC Topeo Limited (£3.1m), and the acquisition of Aspris (Arden) Limited
(£0,1m).

Aspris formation and veorganisation costs relate to other expenses arising on the formation of the Aspris business as
slandalone from the Priovy Group and include masketing-related expenses assoofated with Lhe new Aspris brand.

Reorganisation costs primarily velate 1o the revision to redundancy costs associaled with exit of certain cuslomer
contracts and the implementation of revised management organisational steuctures in the Group.

Other iransaction costs telate to the Group's assessiment, and execution, of other corporale and property relaied
transections,

The Group elected 1o make a one-off contribution to UNICEF's Ukraine appesl during the period.

11, Taxation

Tax recognised in the income stafement

2022
Current tax £nt
Cutrent tax on taxabie incame for lhe period 13
Deferved tax {(note 26)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (1.6)
Tax ercdited in (he period 03

The reasons for the difference between the actual tax charge for the year and the standasd rate of corporation tax
applied {o the Josses for the year are as follows:-

2022

£m

Loss for the year 274
Tax using (he company's lax rate 19% (5.2}
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 5.3
Tax rete changes (0.4)
Total tax credited in the period (0,3}
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Taxation {continued)

As a result of the Finance Bill 2021 the rates of lncome tax are expected 10 increase from 199 to 25% for the period
beginning April 2023,

Tax liabilities are recognised when, despite the Group's belief that its tax return positions nre supportable, the
Directors believe it iz more fikely than not that a taxation authovity would accept its filing position,

The Direciors believe ihiat its accruals for tax liabllities are adequate for all open audit years based on its assessment
of many factors including past expetience and interpretations of tax law,

Na material uncertain tax positious exist as at 31 August 2022, This assessment velies on egtimates and assumplions

and inay invelve a scries of complex judgements about future events. To the extent that the final lax outceme of
these mattevs is different than the determination is made.

12. Property plant and equipment

Group
Furniture, Properties
Land and fittings and Motor under
buiklings equipment vehicles  eonstruction Taotal
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost or vaiuation
Additions 23 6.5 0.1 3.2 12.1
Acquired through business
combinations 122.4 20,6 0.6 33 155.9
Disposals (1.0) (0.5) - 0.2) (1.7)
Transfers 6 63 - - 0.9 -
At Aupust 2022 124.3 35.9 0.7 5.4 ) 166.3
Depreciation
Charge for the periad 1.9 6.7 0.1 - 8.7
Eliminated on disposal 0 - ©3) - - 0.5)
At 31 August 2022 o 1.7 6.4 0.1 - 8.2
Carryiig amount
At 31 Aupust 2022 122.6 235 0.6 5.4 158.1

Under the terms of the Group’s external borrowings there is a fixed charge, in favour of the external lenders, over alt
propetly acquired for a congideration of over £0,75m, Please refer to note 22 for further informaticn on the Group’s
external borrowings,
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13. Right of use assets and liabililics
Group
Assats

Property  Motor vehicles Total

£m im £m

Cost or vahuption
Acquired through business 150.8 24 153.2
combinations
Addilions 3.0 0.5 3.5
Modifications 8.3 - 8.3
Dispasals N ©.1 (0. (0.2
At 31 August 2022 162.0 2.8 164.8
Depreciation
Charge [or the petlad 73 1.2 8.5
Eliminated on disposal . - (0.1) (0.1
At 31 August 2022 7.3 1.1 8.4
Carrying amount
At 3§ August 2022 154.7 17 156.4
Liahilities

Property  Motor vehicles Total

£m £m £m

Acquired through business combinations 151,0 24 1534
Addilions 3.0 0.5 3.5
Moedifications 3.3 - 83
Disposals - - -
Interest 10.2 03 10.5
Lease payments (14.0) (1.3) (15.3)
Foreipn Exchange movements 0.1 - 0.1
At 31 August 2022 158.6 19 160.5
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Right of use Assets and lisbilities (continued)
Nafure of leasing activities

The Group leases a number of praperties in the jwisdictions in which it operates. Some of these leeses provide for
payments to inctease each year by inflation or index rate movements. The Group has options io purchase or extend
the leases of ¢ertain properties. As the excicising of such options is not deened to be reasonably certain, such
renewal optlons are not tuken into account when determining the right of use assets and liabilities. Leases of vehictes
comprise only fixed paytents over the lease term.

Lease liabillties are due as follows:

Waturity analysis £m
Year § 15.5
Year 2 15,1
Year3 4.3
Year 4 13.9
Year 5 , 13.7
Onwards 2313
303.8_
Less: unearned interest (143.3)
160.5

Analysed as!

Non-Current 1554
Current 3.1
160.5

Amounts recogniscd in profit and loss

An amount of £0.9m has been recognised in profit and foss in respect of property leases that expired and wese not
venewed, and for tolling lease agreements. Cash payments in respect of these leases amouated to £0.9m.

At 31 August 2022, the Group had no commitments under these agreetments in excess of a tvo-month notice period.
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14, Initaugible assets
Group
Cofractual
Goodwill cnstomer
(Note 15) relatipnships ‘Fotal
fm £m £1n
Cost o valuation
Acquired through business combinations 69.3 08.8 168.1
At 31 August 2022 69.3 98.8 168.1
Amortisation
Amortisation cherge - 50 5.0
Tmpaitment (note 15) 19.7 - 19.7
At 31 August 2022 19.7 5.0 24.7
Carrying amonnt ' |
At 31 Aupust 2022 49.6 93,8 1434

All Intangible Fixed Assets (“TFAs®) were identified on Purchase Price Allocation exercises (“PPA™) exercises
carried out on behalf of management by an independent expert, at two polnts:

1. Acquisilion of Priory Hducation Setvices Limited (“PESL" — subsequently rename Aspris Children's
Sevvices Limited) by Aspris Holdeo Limited on 31 August 2021

2. Acquisition of SC Tepee Limited by Aspris Childven’s Services Limited on 28 January 2022

3, Acquisition of Hollybluc Heallhcave (Arden) Limited, lalterly renamed Aspris (Arden) Limited

All IFAs have been amorlised in line with useful economic lives determined by management at each relevant
acquisition date.

In accordancewith accounting standards, the Group undertakes an annual review of Goodwill and where other IFAs
where there ave indicators of mpairment,
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15. Goodwill and impairment

Goordwill represents the excess of the consideration over the fuir value of the net assets aequived on the purchase of
the subsidiary companies. In accordance with IFRS, this balance is not amoriised and is subject to annual impairment
teviews. Goodwlll has been allocated to each cash-generating unit (“CGU™) based on Purchase price Allocation
(“PPA™) exercises:

1. Acquisilion of Priory Education Setvices Limited (“FPESL” — subsequently renamed Aspris Children’s
Services Limited) by Aspris Holdeo Limited on 31 Aupust 2621

2. Acquisition of 8C Topco Limited by Aspris Children’s Services Limited on 28 January 2022

3. Acquisition of Hollyblue Healtheare {Arden) Limited, latterly renamed Aspris (Arden) Limited

ACSL Sand-  Ardon Total

Group castle

Group
Im Em £m £m
Goodyylll recognised during the period 21.0 47,7 06 69.3
Impairment recopnised during the period - 9.7 - (197
Goodwill 21,0 28.0 0.6 49.6

In accordance with accounting standards, the Group undertakes an annual review of Goodwill,

In order to determine if there has been sny impairment of Goodwill, management prepared caloulations of the
recoverable amount for each CGU. For both ACSL Group and the Sandesstie Care Group the recoverable value is
determined by the forecast present value of future cash flows of the CGU based on S-year projections ending in a
terminal growth rate assumption. Forecasts ave based on the essumptions set out below:

I{cy Assumptions ACSL Group Sandeastle Care
Drscount Rate 11.0% 10.3%
Termina! Growth Rate 2.0% 1.0%
Operating Margin 10,3% 20.6%

ACSL Group

Bince the date of ecquisition, the ACSL Group has mairtsined performance in line with the budgeted targets set for
the business. Operational challenges, particularly regarding constraints on the availability of staff have been
cffectively managed, without 2 material adverse impact on ACSL’s profitability for the peviod.

Forecast for FY23 is based on budget prepared by management and approved by the Board, with appropriate
adjustments for trading at 31 August 2022. Operaling profit is forecast to increase at 2% CAGR betwveen FY24 and
FY27. Replacement capex to maintain the estate has also been assumed, on par with FY23 budgeted levels.

Regarding the Group’s acquisition of 100% of the share capital of ACSL Group on 3| August 2021 the Group assessed
the fair value of identifiable nef assets acquired to be £41.2m, compared to the total consideration of £62.2m, giving
rise to £21.0m intangible goodwill being recognised by the Group. As at 31 August 2022 Management assessed the
recoverable amount for ACSL Group to be £241,1m, £15.5m greater then the carvying value, and thus no impairment
to the Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the period,
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Goodwlll snet impairnient (confinued}
Sandeastle Care Group

Since the daie of acquisition, the Sandeastic Care business has maintained a high quality rating performance of over
90% posl-acquisition, but the business has been impacted by operatlonal challenges that have reduced both its
available cepacily and utilisation, Whilst aspects of these challenges are not thought lo be permanent, they have
impacted lhe overall assessment of the present value of future cash{lows from the business. These challenges include
staffing consiraints that have led to reduced total occupancy and an adverse impact on operating margins conapased fo
the budgeted targels for the business,

Forecast for FY23 is based on the budget prepared by management and approved by the Board, with appropriate
adjusiments for trading at 31 August 2022, Operating profit is forecast to inerease al 1% CAGR behveen FY24 and
Y27, Replacement capex Lo rmaintain the eslate has also been assumed, on par with FY23 budgeted levels.

Regarding the Group's acquisition of 100% of the share capite! of SC TopCo Limiled on 28 January 2022 the Group
assessed the fair value of identifiable nel assets nequired to be £14.0m, compared to the total consideration of £61.7m,
giving rise fo £47.7m inlangible goodwill being recoghised by the Group,

Management assessed the recoverable amount for Sandeastle Care Group to be £77.6m, £19.7m lower than the
carrying value of the CGU on a comparable basis at balance sheet date, and as such have impaived the goodwill
associated with the CGU by the shortfall in earrylng value versus the recoverablé amount.

Impairment sensitivities forr ACSL Gronp and Sandeastle Care Group

1f any one of the following assumptions were amended by | percentage point, the impact on the impairinent value
would be as follows:

Sensitivities Aspris Sandeastlc Care
Discount Rate (1% increase) Reduction to earrying value | Reduction to catrying velus

L [rom £241,Im to £221.2m from £77.8m fo £71.6m

Terminal Growlh Rate {1% reduction) Reduction to canying value |  Reduction to carrying value
from £241.1m to £220.7m from £77.6m to £71.5m
Qperating Martgin {1% reduction beyond FY27) | Reduction to carrying value | Reduction to carrying value
fiom £241.1m o £223.0m front £77 6m to £74.8m

Aspris (Avdon) Lim{ted

The assets held by Aspris (Arden) Limited consist of land and buildings, these were at fair value on acquisition,
there are no subsequent indicators of impairment to the assets of Aspris (Arden) Limited, Since the acquisition of
Arden the business has been performing in line with expectations, and thus no impalrment to the Goodwill avising
ol acquisition is reguired in the period.
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16. Investments - Group Subsidiaries

(continued)

Details of the group subsidiavies as at 31 Aupust 2022 are as follows:

Naree of subsidiary

Aspris Midco Limited
Aspris Bidco Limited

Aspris Children’s Services Limited

Coxlease School Limited
Castlecare Group Limited

Progress Care and Education Limited

Specialify Care Limited
Strathmore College Limited
Aspris (Thetford 1) Limited

Aspriz New Education Services Limited

Castlecare Holdings limited
Quantum Care (UK) Limited

Principal activity

Holding company
Holding compeny
Specialist education services
Non trading

Non trading
Children’s homes
Holding company
Care delivery
‘Non trading
Education

Non trading

Children’s care homes

Speciality Cave (Rest Homes) Limited  Care delivery
Speciality Care {Medicare) Limited
Specialised Courses Offering Purposeful  Care delivery

Holding company

Bducation Limited

Aspris (Thetford 2) Limited
Dunhall Property Limited
Castle Homes Care Limited
Castlecare Cymru Limited
Castle Homes Limited
Rothcare Estates Limited
Castlecare Education Limited

Non trading

Mon trading
Children’s care homes
Children’s care homes
Children’s care homes
Property company

Specialist education services
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Registered office

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Eingdom
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Proportion of
ownership
interest and
voting rights

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%



Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022

(continued)

Investments {continued}

Theiford Trostee LLP Non trading United Kingdom 100%
Asptis (Troup House) Limited * Education United Kingdom 100%
Aspire Scotland Holdings Limited* Holding compary United Kingdom 100%
Aspire Scotland Limited+ Children’s care and education  United Kingdom 100%
Galaxy Cafe Limited* Children's care and education  United Kingdom 100%
Galaxy UK Leisure Limited* Children’s care and education United Kingdom 100%
8C Topeo Limited*#* Holding company United Kingdom 100%
8C Bideo Limited*¥ Holding company United Kingdom 100%
Natabra Properties Limited** Property company United Kingdom 100%
Sandcastle Care Holdings Limited** Holdipg company United Kingdom 100%
Sandcastle Cave Limited** Children’s care homes United Kingdom 100%
Partixol UK Limited** Property company United Kingdom 100%
Aspris (Arden) Limited Property company United Kingdom 100%
Friory Healtheare LLC*¥¥ Healtheare UAE 0%

Unless stated otherwise the vegistered address of each subsidiary is: The Forge, Clwrch Street West, Woking,
Surrey, England, GU2) 6HT

*Compauy registered address is: Radio City Building, 18 Bridgend, Kilbimie, Scofland, KA25 70F

**Campany registered address is: 49 Whitegate Drive, Blackpoao), Lancashire, England, FY3 9DG

**++ 4 spris Group contrals Prloty Healthosre LLC through & bination of 1 ng and the ability te direct the financin) acd
operalional manegemen) of the entity

Aspris Holdeo Limiled hes given statutory gusrantees against all the onlstanding liabillties of all wholly owned
subsidiaries as at 31 August 2022_ This thereby allowed dormant subsidiaries to be exempt from the requitement to
prepare and file annual accounts under section 354A or the Companies Act, and non-dermant subsidiaries to be
exempt from the annual audit requirement under Section 479A of the Companies Act, for the period ended 31
August 2022,

The Group hes control of a 60% interest in Saudi Healthcare LLC (“SHe"), an entity registered in KSA, which
operates 2 Wellbeing Centre in Riyadh. The operation, although important to management’s future plans and
strategy in the region, is not seen as material in the context of these Financial Statements.

During the periad the Group loaned £1,1m to SHe, in eddition to the £0.1m interest in share capital and £0.3m.
acquired on business combination. SHc did not trade during the period and incurred [osses of £0.9m, the Group’s
share of these losses £0.5m have been recognised in aperating costs.

Investments - Company

Group

2022

Investments made during peried - Cost £m
Aspris Mideo Limited 119.1
At 31 August 2022 115.1
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(continued)

17. Business combinations

Acqunisition of subsidiary — Aspids Children’s Services Limited and subsidiarics

On 31 August 2021, the Group acquived 100% of the Jssued share capital of Priory Education Services Limited
(fatterly named Aspris Children®s Services Limited), obtaining control, The principal ectivity of Aspris Children's
Services Limited ("ACSL") is provision of specialist schools, colieges, children’s homes and fostering. ACSL was
acquired by Aspris Bidco Limited, a wholly owned subsidiaty of Aspris Holdco Limited. This fransaction was
undertaken to purchase the children's services and Middic East operations of the Priory Group, of which ACSL and

its subsidiaries were previously members of,

The 100% shareholding in ACSL was obtained for cash consideration of £62.2m,

As part of {he acquisition, loans totalling, £90.1m between ACSL and its subsidiavies, and Prioty Group wers settled.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identiliable assetls acquired and liabilities essumed are as set out in the

table below!

im Boolk Fats Value Fair valae
V¥alue adjustments

Assets and labllities acquired

Property, plant and equipment 134.2 5.0 139.2
Right of use assets 153.2 {0.2) 153.0
Intanglble assels 272 15.2 42.4
Trade and other receivables 13.7 0.1 13.8
Cash and cash equivalent 1.9 - 1.9
Lease labilities (153.2) - (153.2)
Trade and other payables (134.0) - (134.0)
Provisions {0.8) - (0.8)
Deferred tax liabilities {3.8) (17.3) 21.1)
Total identifiable essets 38.4 2.8 41.2
Goodwill - - 21.0
Total consideration 62.2
Satisfied by:

Cash 62,2
Cash flow anelysis:

Cash consideration 622
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (L9
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition 60.3
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Business combinntions (continued)

The fair value of the financial assets includes receivables with a (air value of £12.2m and a gross coniractual value
of £12.6m. The best estimate at acquisition dale of the contractual cash flows nol Lo be collected are £0.4m.

The goodwill of £21 1 arising from the acquisition consists of fhe presence of certain intangible assets, which do not
qualify for separate recoghition, such as;

= Assembled workforee of ACSL, including hoth (he UK and Middle Bast workforce

s Aspris® ability to extend the existing relationships acquired with Local Authorities beyond the useful
economie life anticipated at initial aequisitian

*  Development cf new yelationships in the Middle Bast

Nons of the goodwill is expected 1o be deductible for income lax purposes,
Acquisilion related costs of £2.5m arose as a result of the transaction.
Acquisition of subsidisry - SC Topeo Limited and subsidiaries

On 238 January 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of 8C Topeo Limited (*Sandcastle Care™),
oblaining control. The prineipal activity of Sandeastle Care is the provision of therapeutic care homes for chitdren.
Sandeastle Care was scquited to achieve the creation of a conselidated business in the Waterland group thel is
focused on providing children's service. The transaction provides Aspris with greater coverage in the Northwest of
England, where Sandcastle Cares’ propetties are primatily located.
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Business combinations {conlinued)

The smounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabililies sssumed are as set out In the
table below:

£m Book Fair value Tair
Value Rejustments value
Assets and Tiabilities ncquired
Property, plant and equipment 244 (132) 11.2
Right of usc assets 02 - 0.2
Intangible nascts 12,0 444 36.4
Trade and other receivables 18 - 38
Cash and cash equivalent kX - 36
Leage labilities {8.2) - {0.2}
Trade and other payables (2.5) - (2.5)
[acome tax Lability Ly - 149
Loans and borrowings {41.3) - (41.3)
Defeured tax liabilities {0.2) (15.9) {16.1}
Total identifiable assets (1‘37— 15.3 14.0 )
Goodwill - - 47,7
Total consideration 61.7
Satisfied by:
Cash 61.7
Cash o analysis;
Cash consideralion 61.7
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (3.6)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition 58.1

The fair value of the financial assets includes receivables with a fair value of £3.4u and a gross coniraclual value of
£3.4m.

The goadwill of £47 7m arising from the acquisition consists of the presence of certain intangible assels, which do
not qualify for separate recognition, such as;

*  Assembled workforce of Sendcastle Care.
«  Sandcaslle Care’s ability to exiend the existing relationships acquired with Local Autkorities beyond the
useful economic life anticipated at initfal acquisition.

None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for corporation tax purposes.

Acquisition related eosts of £3.1m arcse as a result of the transaction.
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Busluess combinations (continued}

Acquisition of subslflipry — Aspiis (Arden) Limited

On 31 March 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued shere capital of Hollyblue Healihcare (Arden) Limited,
latterly renamed Aspris (Arden) Limited on abtaining controf. Iis principal aclivity is a property fessor. The
purchase of Hollyblue Healtheare {Avden) Limited enabled the acquisition of the fieehold inlerests in proportics
previously leased to the Group, This included properties thal had previously formed parl of the Priory Group’s
residentlal adult care division. Subsequent to the purchase of Hollyblue (Arden) Limited such properties were ;
disposed of by the Aspris Group fo the Priory Group at faiv valuc. |

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set out in the
{uble below:

£m Book Value adf::;:;’;:’; vl:ﬁ'::
Assets and Habilities nequired :
Property, plant and equipment 5.5 - 55 !
Trade and other payables 0.1) - (0.1)
Income tax liabllity (.1 - {0.1) \
Defersed tax liabilities - ©.6) (0.6) !
Totat identifiable assets - 53 ©.6) 47 j
Goagdwill - - 0.6 F
Total consideration 53 f
Satlsfied by: |
Cash 53 {
Cash flow analysis: |
Cesh consideration 5.3 i
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired - !
Net cash cutflow arising on acquisition 5.3

None of the goodwill Is expected to be deduelible for corporation tax purposes,

Acquisition velated costs of £0.1m arose a5 a resull of the transaction,
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. Business combinations (continued)

Impsact of the acquirces on smounts reported in the statentent of comprchenstve income

The amounts of revenue and profit or loss of the acquirees since acquisitior date included in the consolidated

statement of incomne for the reporting period is as follows;

Asprls  Sandeastle  Arden

£m £m £m

Revenue 162,7 16.5 0.0

Operaling cost (140.9) {15.5) .3

Operating profit before Impairment and other losses and exceplional 21.8 LG 3
costs

Impairment and other losses and exceptional cosis 8.0) (19.8) 0.0

Operating profit 13.3 {13.8) 0.3

The revenue and profit or loss of the cembined entity for the current veporting perfod as through the acquisition date
for all business combinations that occusred during the year had been at the beginning of the 12 month trading perfod

starting 1 September 2021, is as follows:

£m
Revenue 191.0
Operating cost (7.7
Operating profit before impaiyment and other Josses and exceptional 19.3
cOosts
Impairment and other losses and exceptional costs (28.3)
Opergting profit (9.0)
18. Trade and other veceivabley
Group Company
31 August 31 August
2022 2022
Current £m £m
Trade receivables 197 -
Provision for Impaitment of trade receivables (0.1) -
Net trade receivables 19.6 -
Accrued incomme 0.4 -
Prepayments 1.7 -
Loans receivable from joint venturs (nots 28) 1.0 -
Other receivables o 1.8 2.2
24.5 0.2

Ali cuirent teceivables are due within 1 year of balance sheet dale. None of these ave subject to material or sipnificant
credit fosses, Credit risk is not considered to be significant given that over 90% of revenue is derived from publicly

funded entitles.

Amounts receivable frem joint venture ave not subject to interest and are repayable on demand.
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{continved)
19. Cash and cash equivalents
Greup  Company
2022 2022
im £m
Cash at bank B 18.1 3.7

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hatd and at bank. Cash at bank {3 held with benks or financlal
institutian counterparttes which are investment grade rated. Maaagement do nat expect any losses from non-
performance of counterpaities.

20, Deferved income

Group

2022

£m

Acquired through business combination 789
Deferred during the year 28.8
Recopnised during the year (23.9)
288

Deferred incoms Is in respect of services invoiced In advance of delivery and is relensed as services ave delivered,

21. Issued capital and reserves

Allotted, enlled up and fully paid shares

2022 20232

. MNa. £000

A Ordinery shares of £1 each 82,851,341 82,851
B Ordinary shares of £1 each 1,782,603 1,783
C Ordinary shares of £1 each 1,232,266 12
85,866,210 84,646
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(coniinued)
Issued capital and reserves (continued)
New shaves allotteel

Class No. Consideration
£000
A Oudinary shares of £1 cach’ 82,851,341 116,861
B Ordinary shares of £1 each? 1,762,603 2,223
C Ordinary shaves of £1 cach? 1232266 36
85,866,210 ) 115,120

' A Ordinary shares of £1 cach bave full valing and poyments of dividend rights, right to distribulions longside B Ordinary shreholders in
priofty 1o C Ordinary shareholder, subjeot ta o threshold. Rights to disiiibutions gree the throsheld has been surpassed alongside Ihe B Ordinary
shareholders and G Ordinacy sharoholdets.

* B3 Ordinacy shares of £1 each have full voling and payments of dividend rights, zight to disldbutions at ide A Qrdinary shareholders in
priosity to C Ordinary sharehclder, subject ta a threshold. Rights fo distributions once the 1hreshold has been surpassed alengside the A Crdinary
shareholders and C Ordinary shareholders.

€ Ordinary shaces of £{ each hiave no vating rights. C Ordinary shares have righis to dividends Bnd distributions once the hwesheld has been
swrpnssed alonpside the A and B Ordinary shareholders,

22. Loans and borrowings

Group

2022

Non-current loans and borrowings £1n
External loans 165.0
Capitalised debt fees (5.4)
External borrowings 159.6

The Group entered into a senior term and revolving facility agreement on 27 August 2021 to facilitate the
acquisition of Sandeastle Care and future acquisitions. As at the end of the period the drawn senior facilities of
£165.0m are secared ayer the Group’s assels and catry interest at a variable margin over the applicable SONIA rate,
The loans ave repayable 7 years from the date of corapletion of the acquisition of ACSL.

External borcowings are recognised at fair value net of transaction costs that are direclly attributable to the credit
facilities. At the balance sheet date this was £5.4m.

The Group’s Loan facilities are subject to 4 single financial cavenant test which is assessed quarterly. This covenrnt
asscsses the total gross Leverage of the Group as a ratio ta proforma LTM EBITDA of the consolidated group at
cach quarteily test date, At the balance sheet date the covenant threshold was 7.4x, as at 31 August 2022 the ratio
level was materially betow this threshold at a level of 4.9x. This equates to £11,6m of headroom expressed in terms
of proforma LTM EBITDA.

As at 31 August 2022 the Group had lelters of credit in place amounting fo £2.3m, This amhount is ringfenced within
the Group’s total revolying credit facility of £22m for this purpose, wilh no other amounts drawn under this facility
as af the balance sheet date. These letiers issued by the Group's principal bankers to the Group’s insurers, an
employee pension scheme, and 10 support credit granted under supplier contracis.
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(continued)
23, Provisions
Lepal
provisicu
2022
£m
Acquired through business combination 0.8
Charged in income statement 04
Used during year {0.2)
1.0
24, Trade and olher payables
Group  Company
2022 2022
£m £m
Trade payables 3.1 -
Accrued expenses 1.7 -
Amounts due to related parties - 09
Soclal security and other faxes 2.3 -
Other payables i 4.4 -
21.5 0.9

QOther payebles consist of credit balances, finds held on behalf of ADEK [or the eperation and investment of the
school operated by the Group and savings held on behalf of young persons.

25, Pension

The Group operates defined copiribution pension schemes, The pension cost charge for the period represents
conlributions payable by the Group to the scheme and amounted (o £4,5m

26, Deferred tax

Deferred tax is caleulated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 19%, The
increase in corporation tax to 25% is expecled to be effeottve from April 2023, This new rate will be applied to
deferred tax balances which are expecled (o reverse as at f Septernber 2022,

Deferred tax assels have been recognised in respect of alf temporary differences giving tise to deferved tax assets
where the Direclors believe it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

The movemenis in deferved tax assefs and liabilities (priot to the offsctting of balances within the same jurisdiction
as permilted by [AS 12) durlng the petiod are shown below,
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(continued)
Deferred lax (continued)

Details of the deferved tax liability, amounts recognised in the profit or loss and amounts recoghised in other
comprehenslve income are as follows:

Recognised lu  Recogoised in Recognised in Total
business income other 31 Aupust
combinafions comprehensive 2022

{Note 17) income
Intangible asset differences 23.8 (1.3) - 225
Tangible asset differences 14.0 (0.3) - 13
37.8 {1.6) - 36.2

Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of capital tax losses caried forward In the UK totalling £2.4m
as there {s insufficient evidence as to their recoverability.

27, Financial instranents

Financinl assets and liabiltics

Financial assets and financial liabilities comprise all asscts and liabilitics reflected in the statement of financiel
position, excluding property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, deferred tax essets, prepayments and deferred
tax linbilit{es.

Group Company
2022 2022
Financial assets £an £in
Investments in subsidiaties - 119.1
Trade and other receivables 22.8 0.2
Cash and cash equivalent 18.1 0.7
40.9 120.0

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 21.5 0.9
Inceoine tax liability 09 -
Deferred income 28.8 -
Lease liabiities 160.5 -
Loans and borrowings 159.6 -
Provisions 1.0 -~ -
723 2.9

There is no difference between the carrying vaiuc of financial instruments and theiv fair value. The Group has no
financial instruments that are measured at fair value.

The Group does not require collateral in vespect of financial assets.
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TFinancial instruments (conlinued)
Tinancial vislc management

The Group is exposed to financial risks in the form of credit, interest and liquidity risks which arise in the norma!
course of business, The pyimary financial risks that the Group is exposed {o are detailed below:

Credit rislc - Cash deposits ond Trade recetvables
Financlal inslruments which potentially expose the Group o credit risk consist primarily of cash and trade receivables.

Cash is only depogited with major financial instilutions that satisfy cerlain credit eriteria, Credit risk in relation fo
trade receivables Is nol considered to be significant given (hat the vast majority of revenue is derived from publicly
funded edication and care secvices. The Group provides credit to customers in the normal course of business and the
balance sheel is net of allowances of £0.1m for doubtful receivables. The Group measurcs those allowances at an
amount equal ta the lifefime expecled credit Iosses nsing both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis
based on the Group’s historical experience and forward-looking information.

Allowantes against doubilu! debls are vecopgnised against frade recelvables based on estimated imrecoverable amounts,
determined by reference 1o past experience of the counterparty. The majority of the Group’s allowance for doubtful
debls relates to specific trade receivables that are nat considered fo be recoverable, and management only considers it
approprizte to create a collective provision based on the age of the trade receivable in respect of certain types of trade
receivables,

The aging of trade receivables at 31 August is as follows:

£m
Current 4.9
30-60 days 4.0
60-150 days 0.5
150 days + 03
19.7

The Direclors consider that the cavrying amount of trade and other receivables is approximately equal to their fair
valus,

Trade receivables at least 60 days past due for which no loss allowance has been made at 31 December is £0.7m.

Funther lo the credil visks described on cash and {rade receivables the Group does not have any significanl credil risk
exposure to any single counterparty or sny group of counterparties having similar chavacteristics, The Group defines
counterparties s having similar characteristics if they are related entities,

There is no concern vver the eredit quality of amounts past due but for which no loss allowances has been recognised
since the risk s spread over a number of unrelated counterparties which include central and local Government. The
maxinium exposure to eredit 1isk at the reporting date is the canying value of each olass of receivable mentioned
above and cash held by the Group,

69




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Financial risk ntanagement (continued)

Interest rate viskt — Sesior and Revolving credit facilitles sontaining a vayiable elenrent linked to Sterling Overvight
Index Average

The Group is financed by a combination of Senior and Revolving external credit facilities, The facilities are
denominated in pounds and are borrowed with interest at a variable margin over the applicable SONIA rate. Senior
loans are repayable on 31 Auigust 2028, and Revolving facilities ave repayable on 31 August 2026,

In addition to assessments required by macro-economic avents, the Group monitors its near term intevest rate exposure
on a monthiy basis, and longer term exposure on a bi=annual basis. This includes the review of the options available
to if for the hedging of interest rate rigk, but carrently does not have a hedged component to the interest burden on its
external debt. {n light of prevailing market conditions, and the high cost of hedging insttuments, the Divectors believe
the Group has sufficient capacity to address the risk of interest rate rises.

Based on maodelling pecformed, & 100 basis point shift in SONIA rates would have g £1.65m incresse ar decrease on
interest payments due on the Group’s externel debt, A 350 basis point shift (being the maximum likely change in
interest vates over the year from the period end) would have an impact of £5.8m on interest payments due on the
Group’s external debt,

Liquidity risl

The Group prepares both annual and shovt-term cesh flow forecasts reflecting known commitments and anticipated
projects, Borrowing facilities are utilised as necessary to finance requirements, The Group has sufficient available
bank facilities and cash flows fiom profits to fund current commitments.

The fotlowing table shows the contractual cash flovw maturities for financial liabillties:

Total  0-1years 2-Sycars S5+ years

Trade and other payables 21.6 21.6
Borrowhtps 165.0 165.0
Lease liabilitles 3038 15.5 57.0 2313

Foreign currency vislk

Substantially all of the Group’s operations are in the UK and as such foreign currency risk is not deemed significant.
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Capital Risk Management

The Group's aljjective when managitig its cepital Is {o ensure that enlities in the Graup will be able lo continue as a
going concern whilst maximising refurns tor stakeholders through the optimisation of debt and equity. The Group's
capilal situclure is as follows:

2022
£m
Cash 18.1
Bonrowings! (165.0)
Leage liabilities (160.5)
~ Equity 92.0
1. Excluding accrued imterest and capitalised debl fees.
Analysis of net debt
Business Cash Other
Comhinations flow Inferest movement®
£m £m £m £m fm
Cash 55 12.6 - - 18.1
Borrowings’ (41.3) {123.7) - - (165,03
Net Debt (excluding (35.8) RIS - - (146.9)
Lease liabilities)
Leasc liabilities (1534 15.3 ~{10.5) [CO )] (160.5)
Net Debi (193,09 (92.0) (19.5) {11.9) (307.4)

1 Excluding accrued interest and capjlalised debt fees of £5.4m
2. Relates lu ign-¢ash movements in Jense tabilities - see note 13 for dedails

28. Relnted parties

Ultimate parent and controlling party

The Compeny’s inmediate parent is Standbyco 35 B.V

The ultimate parent s Waterland Private Equity Investments B.V

The uitimate controlling party is Waterland Privale Equity Investinents B.V

Aspris Holdeo Limited s the smallest and largest company for which consolidated financial statements are prepared
for public use,
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Related partles {conthed)

Balances and transactions between fhe Company and its subsidiavies, which are related parties, have been eliminated
on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note.

The Group is awed £1.4m from Saudi Healtheare LLC, a related pacty as a joint ventuce investment which {s cquity
accounted for in these statements, there is no interest chavge, and this balance Is repayable on demand. Held against
this receivable is a provision of £0.4m for the Group’s shave of the Initia! losses incurred over the investment amount
made in Saudi Healtheare LLC, The net of the amounts owed of £§.0m Is detailed in note 18.

The: Group paid a management charge of £30,000 to WPEF VIII Holding Cotperaticf W.A, a relafed party through
cornmon control.

Prior to the acquisition of Aspris Group (note 17} Priery Ldueation Services Limited (*PESL™) was a part of the Priory
Group. At the lime of the transaction Priory Group was a relaled party, Whilst the Group’s operations were lacgely
autonomous from those of the wider Priory Group, Aspris was the recipient of central support services provided to it
by the Prioty Group. These services continued under a fransitional services arrangement agreed at the thme of the
Group's acquisition of PESL, This wansitional agreement provided for hack office support, ineluding use of syslems
and software, human resources suppott, estates and aspecis of financial reporting assistance, This transitional stage
included the implementation of Aspris’ own standalonae systems and suppott infrastructure, the process of which was
completed by 30th November 2022, with all services recefved under this transitional arangemnent ceased to be
provided from that date.

On 28 Januaty 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of SC Topeo Limited (note 17), obtaining
control. 8C Topeo Limited was a related party by the nature of comman ownership. One of the prinelpal purposes of
the acquisition was to achieve the oreation of a consolidated business in the Waterland group that is focused on
praviding children’s service,

During the period an smount of £0.4m was advanced to directors at an interest vate equal to lhe IMRC official rate
of interest, oh a term concurrent with the period with which the Directors temain shareholders in the Group. Intercst
is paid by the Directors annualiy end early repayment of any portion of the outstanding balance is permitted at any
time. During the period vepayments of £0.2m were made, with the remaining £0.2m outstanding at the period end
being included in other receivables (note 18)
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Key management personncl

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and respensibility for planning, directing and
canitolling the activitics of (he Group.

2022
2000
Directors' emoluments 1,926
Directors’ post-employment benefits 8

Total emcluments for the highest paid director were £1,153,000, this included a ore-off non-reeurring reward of
£305,000 releting to the exceptionally high levet of corporate transactions and reorganisation activity successfuliy
compieted during the period, The value of the Compauy's contvibutions paid to a defined centribution pension
scheme in vespect of the highest paid direclor amounted to £4,000,

The humber of Directors to whom relivement benefits ave acorued undel money purchase pension schemes is 2.

29, Dvenis after reporting date
Acquisition of BHIS Haoldings Linited

Following lhe close of the reporting period, and consistent with the Group strategy of expanding its specialist
educalion division, the Group campleled the acquisition of a specialist education provider in the UK, BHIS
Holdings Limited, on t March 2023,

The acquired business, and its wholly owned subsldiaries, provide specialist edugation for up to approximately 100
ptimary and secondary school aged young peaple in the Easl of England,

To support this acquisition, and the Group’s broader growth objectives, the Group entered iulo an extlension of its
available external debl facilities with its existing lenders. This new growth facility was apreed and effective fiom 8
February 2023, These facilities provide an additional £25m of committed available debt capacity 1o support lhe
growth picjects of the Group,

In additlon, as part of the above acquisition the Group issued ndditional equity enpital to ils shareholders in March
2023, with the above acquisilion being funded through a combination of a parlial dravdewn of the new growth debt
lacitity and this new equity capital raise.
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